
Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where
individuals, communities and businesses flourish

Licensing Committee

The meeting will be held at 7.00 pm on 7 July 2016

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, New Road, Grays, Essex, RM17 6SL.

Membership:

Councillors Michael Stone (Chair), Ben Maney (Vice-Chair), Chris Baker, Jan Baker, 
Colin Churchman, Gary Collins, Robert Gledhill, Clifford Holloway, Roy Jones, 
Steve Liddiard, Joycelyn Redsell, Gerard Rice, Graham Snell and Pauline Tolson

Substitutes:

Councillors James Baker, Garry Hague, Graham Hamilton, Shane Hebb, 
David Potter and Aaron Watkins

Agenda

Open to Public and Press

Page

1.  Apologies for Absence 

2.  Minutes 5 - 10

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Licensing 
Committee meeting held on 28 January 2016.

3.  Items of Urgent Business

To receive additional items that the Chair is of the opinion should be 
considered as a matter of urgency, in accordance with Section 100B 
(4) (b) of the Local Government Act 1972

4.  Declaration of Interests 

5.  Review of the Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 
2005 

11 - 80



6.  CSE Awareness Training for Hackney Carriage Private Hire 
Drivers 

81 - 84

7.  Applications Received 85 – 98

Queries regarding this Agenda or notification of apologies:

Please contact Jessica Feeney, Senior Democratic Services Officer by sending an 
email to Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Agenda published on: 29 June 2016



Information for members of the public and councillors

Access to Information and Meetings

Members of the public can attend all meetings of the council and its committees and 
have the right to see the agenda, which will be published no later than 5 working days 
before the meeting, and minutes once they are published.

Recording of meetings

This meeting may be recorded for transmission and publication on the Council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
to be recorded.
Members of the public not wishing any speech or address to be recorded for 
publication to the Internet should contact Democratic Services to discuss any 
concerns.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact Democratic Services at 
Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Guidelines on filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings

The council welcomes the filming, photography, recording and use of social media at 
council and committee meetings as a means of reporting on its proceedings because 
it helps to make the council more transparent and accountable to its local 
communities.
If you wish to film or photograph the proceedings of a meeting and have any special 
requirements or are intending to bring in large equipment please contact the 
Communications Team at CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk before the 
meeting. The Chair of the meeting will then be consulted and their agreement sought 
to any specific request made.
Where members of the public use a laptop, tablet device, smart phone or similar 
devices to use social media, make recordings or take photographs these devices 
must be set to ‘silent’ mode to avoid interrupting proceedings of the council or 
committee.
The use of flash photography or additional lighting may be allowed provided it has 
been discussed prior to the meeting and agreement reached to ensure that it will not 
disrupt proceedings.
The Chair of the meeting may terminate or suspend filming, photography, recording 
and use of social media if any of these activities, in their opinion, are disrupting 
proceedings at the meeting.

Page 1

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk
mailto:CommunicationsTeam@thurrock.gov.uk


Thurrock Council Wi-Fi

Wi-Fi is available throughout the Civic Offices. You can access Wi-Fi on your device 
by simply turning on the Wi-Fi on your laptop, Smartphone or tablet.

 You should connect to TBC-CIVIC

 Enter the password Thurrock to connect to/join the Wi-Fi network.

 A Terms & Conditions page should appear and you have to accept these before 
you can begin using Wi-Fi. Some devices require you to access your browser to 
bring up the Terms & Conditions page, which you must accept.

The ICT department can offer support for council owned devices only.

Evacuation Procedures

In the case of an emergency, you should evacuate the building using the nearest 
available exit and congregate at the assembly point at Kings Walk.

How to view this agenda on a tablet device

You can view the agenda on your iPad, Android Device or Blackberry 
Playbook with the free modern.gov app.

Members of the Council should ensure that their device is sufficiently charged, 
although a limited number of charging points will be available in Members Services.

To view any “exempt” information that may be included on the agenda for this 
meeting, Councillors should:

 Access the modern.gov app
 Enter your username and password

Page 2

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB


DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART – QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

Breaching those parts identified as a pecuniary interest is potentially a criminal offence

Helpful Reminders for Members

 Is your register of interests up to date? 
 In particular have you declared to the Monitoring Officer all disclosable pecuniary interests? 
 Have you checked the register to ensure that they have been recorded correctly? 

When should you declare an interest at a meeting?

 What matters are being discussed at the meeting? (including Council, Cabinet, 
Committees, Subs, Joint Committees and Joint Subs); or 

 If you are a Cabinet Member making decisions other than in Cabinet what matter is 
before you for single member decision?

Does the business to be transacted at the meeting 
 relate to; or 
 likely to affect 

any of your registered interests and in particular any of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests? 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests shall include your interests or those of:

 your spouse or civil partner’s
 a person you are living with as husband/ wife
 a person you are living with as if you were civil partners

where you are aware that this other person has the interest.

A detailed description of a disclosable pecuniary interest is included in the Members Code of Conduct at Chapter 7 of 
the Constitution. Please seek advice from the Monitoring Officer about disclosable pecuniary interests.

What is a Non-Pecuniary interest? – this is an interest which is not pecuniary (as defined) but is nonetheless so  
significant that a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard to be so significant 
that it would materially impact upon your judgement of the public interest.

If the Interest is not entered in the register and is not the subject of a 
pending notification you must within 28 days notify the Monitoring Officer 
of the interest for inclusion in the register 

Unless you have received dispensation upon previous 
application from the Monitoring Officer, you must:
- Not participate or participate further in any discussion of 

the matter at a meeting; 
- Not participate in any vote or further vote taken at the 

meeting; and
- leave the room while the item is being considered/voted 

upon
If you are a Cabinet Member you may make arrangements for 
the matter to be dealt with by a third person but take no further 
steps

If the interest is not already in the register you must 
(unless the interest has been agreed by the Monitoring 

Officer to be sensitive) disclose the existence and nature 
of the interest to the meeting

Declare the nature and extent of your interest including enough 
detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature

Non- pecuniaryPecuniary

You may participate and vote in the usual 
way but you should seek advice on 
Predetermination and Bias from the 

Monitoring Officer.

Page 3



Vision: Thurrock: A place of opportunity, enterprise and excellence, where individuals, 
communities and businesses flourish.

To achieve our vision, we have identified five strategic priorities:

1. Create a great place for learning and opportunity

 Ensure that every place of learning is rated “Good” or better

 Raise levels of aspiration and attainment so that residents can take advantage of 
local job opportunities

 Support families to give children the best possible start in life

2. Encourage and promote job creation and economic prosperity

 Promote Thurrock and encourage inward investment to enable and sustain growth

 Support business and develop the local skilled workforce they require

 Work with partners to secure improved infrastructure and built environment

3. Build pride, responsibility and respect 

 Create welcoming, safe, and resilient communities which value fairness

 Work in partnership with communities to help them take responsibility for shaping 
their quality of life 

 Empower residents through choice and independence to improve their health and 
well-being

4. Improve health and well-being

 Ensure people stay healthy longer, adding years to life and life to years 

 Reduce inequalities in health and well-being and safeguard the most vulnerable 
people with timely intervention and care accessed closer to home

 Enhance quality of life through improved housing, employment and opportunity

5. Promote and protect our clean and green environment 

 Enhance access to Thurrock's river frontage, cultural assets and leisure 
opportunities

 Promote Thurrock's natural environment and biodiversity 

 Inspire high quality design and standards in our buildings and public space

Page 4



Minutes of the Meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 28 January 2016 at 
7.00 pm

Present: Councillors Michael Stone (Chair), Roy Jones (Vice-Chair) ( 
from 7.45pm), Oliver Gerrish,  Clifford Holloway ( from 7.15pm), 
Steve Liddiard, Andrew Roast, Graham Snell and 
Deborah Stewart (from 7.25pm)

Apologies: Councillors Colin Churchman, Martin Kerin Ben Maney and 
Bukky Okunade,

In attendance:
Paul Adams, Principal Licensing Officer
Lucy Magill, Head of Resident Services 
Adam Rulewski, Legal Services
Kenna-Victoria Martin, Senior Democratic Services Officer

Before the start of the Meeting, all present were advised that the meeting may be 
filmed and was being recorded, with the audio recording to be made available on 
the Council’s website.

12. Minutes 

The Minutes of the Licensing Committee, held on 30 September, were 
approved as a correct record

13. Items of Urgent Business 

There were no items of urgent business

14. Declaration of Interests 

No interests were declared

15. Child Sexual Exploitation and Licensing 

Members were presented with a presentation by the Principal Licensing 
Officer who highlighted the following points: 

 Sexual exploitation of children and young people under 18 involved 
exploitative situations and relationships where young people received 
‘accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money, as 
a result of them performing, and/or another or others performing on 
them, sexual activities. 

 Child sexual exploitation (CSE) could occur through the use of 
technology without the child’s immediate recognition for example social 
media; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 Within such relationships violence, coercion and intimidation were 
common; 

 CSE was linked to one of the main objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 
was “protection of children from harm”. It also related to Taxi Licensing 
as applicants were subject to the  fit and proper person test;

 In CSE cases elsewhere in the country taxis featured highly in the 
movement of children involved in CSE. The information provided by 
taxi drivers, could be key  if they knew to report concerns  to relevant 
authorities

 An extract from the Jay Enquiry  quoted “The prominent role of taxi 
drivers in CSE as a ‘common thread’ across England and noted that 
their involvement was evident from an early stage in Rotherham”

The Committee were informed that Thurrock Council was ensuring 
policies remained robust and up to date, which included: 

o A recent review of suitability policy;
o Raising awareness with Members of the Licensing Committee.
o All licensing staff had received CSE awareness training, and one 

was the CSE Champion for Public Protection.
o The Licensing Department sits on the MASE (Multi agency 

sexual exploitation) group.
o Liaison with the Safeguarding team on complaints around 

licence holders and referral to Licensing Sub Committee where 
warranted.

o Raising awareness amongst the licence trade through leaflets, 
window stickers, presentations at pubwatch etc.

Members enquired as to how the Licensing Team would deal with any 
accusations and they were notified of such allegations. Officers explained that 
when a taxi driver applied for a licence or a renewal application was 
submitted, all applications were subject to an enhanced DBS check.  It was 
further explained that this was wider than just offences and could include 
intelligence as well, in addition to this Essex police do notify Licensing 
Authorities where a taxi driver is arrested for an offence. and Where 
complaints were received they would liaise with colleagues in other 
departments and partner agencies as information received, could lead onto 
other outcomes. 

It was queried as to who drivers were being trained to contact with relevant 
information. The Principal Licensing Officer confirmed that taxi drivers were 
being told to call the 101 number for the police, unless they felt a child was at 
risk then they would advise 999. 

Members sought clarification should a Sub-Committee receive a hearing, 
which involved a child’s protection should it be decided on the merits of each 
case. Officers explained the fitness to be a licenced driver test would need to 
be applied, including applying the council policy, however if a Sub-Committee 
felt the need to depart from the policy if it was possible to do this if there were 

Page 6



exceptional circumstances.   It was further mentioned that all Sub-Committees 
have a legal adviser in attendance, who could advise on each case.

RESOLVED:

For the Licensing Committee to note the contents of the presentation.

16. Setting of Licensing Fees for 2016/2017 

The Principal Licensing Officer introduced the report to the Committee and in 
doing so, explained the report was proposing the licensing fees for 2016/2017 
which had undergone consultation with local licence holders. 

It was further explained any fee charged must be based on cost recovery with 
no profit being made on the licence fee income, any surplus must be carried 
forward, and any deficit could also be carried forward and recovered. 

Members were informed over the last few years there had been an increase in 
the amount of time which was spent on processing and approving animal 
welfare licences and an additional mid-term inspection now took place, during 
a busy period for the relevant business. In addition to the fee the applicant 
would also continue to be invoiced for the fee charged to Thurrock Council for 
the Vet inspection of the premises. Members were advised the Vet fee would 
vary from premises to premises.

The Principal Licensing Officer mentioned that all Private Hire Operators 
Licences were currently issued for 1 year, with annual renewal; however there 
was a change to the legislation that came into effect from October 2015 that 
required Local Authorities to issue 5 year licences, unless there was a good 
reason not to do so. The proposal to offer a 1 year licence when requested by 
the applicant or where circumstances may require so was still an option. 

Members were advised that the Scrap Metal Dealers fee was a new fee and it 
was currently too early to carry out a full review; however Officers confirmed 
that it would be revisited next year. 

The Committee raised the following questions which were answered by 
Officers: 

 Councillor Gerrish enquired as to whether it was correct that the 
Licensing Department had a £40,000 deficit, he further asked if it was 
possible for the deficit to grow. 

The Principal Licensing Officer explained that was correct however in 
line with the Licensing Act 2003 the fees were set by statute and were 
in line with legislation. 

The Head of Resident Services advised that the deficit should not 
increase as it was managed within the Licensing Team. 

 Councillor Roast queried the raise for Animal Welfare Licences. 

Page 7



Officers explained there had been a raise in the amount of time spent at 
animal premises, which had led to a mid-year inspection being incorporated.  
It was further explained officers were now better trained which could lead to 
the reduction in vet fees. 

It was mentioned in some of the consultation feedback that 2 officers had 
visited some premises, this was or training purposes, for time recording and 
cost purposes this was based on one officer only.  

Councillor Stewart sought as to how many letters Officers sent to taxi firms 
within the borough. 

The Principal Licensing Officer confirmed the team wrote to approximately 
400 people within the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trade and 34 
premises for the Animal Welfare licence. 

Councillor Stewart commented that with the responses received would equate 
to 10% of the people written too. 

The Head of Resident Services notified Members that the team had met with 
the taxi operators and had on going in-depth conversations in relation to the 
fees. She continued by stating it could be considered to be  a good thing, 
there were few responses as it showed the trade were listening and 
understanding the conversations which had been discussed.

The Chair of the Committee proposed recommendation 1.2, which was 
seconded by Councillor Liddiard.  

RESOLVED:

To recommend to Full Council the adoption of the licence fees proposed 
following the consideration of the consultation response by officers as 
attached in Appendix 7.

17. Statement of Policy and Guidelines relating to the relevance of 
Convictions, Formal / Simple Cautions, Complaints and/or other matters 
- Taxi Licensing 

The Principal Licensing Officer presented the report to the Committee 
notifying them that Local Authorities had the power to set policy relating to the 
relevance of convictions, formal or simple cautions, complaints and or other 
matters that it requires holders and applicants for Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Drivers to meet.

Members were further informed that a draft copy of Thurrock Councils policy 
was presented at the September meeting and had since been out  for 
consultation with the taxi trade; however to date no responses had been 
received.  

Page 8



It was commented that the taxi trade were largely supportive of the revised 
policy, which included advanced details in relation to different types of 
offences.  Members were advised once the policy was agreed it would be 
taken to Full Council to be adopted. 

The Chair of the Committee stated that:

“This Committee makes decision s that keep people safe and one of the 
things that involves is the honesty of those we licence. 

It has become clear that not everybody is as up front and honest as they 
should be and too often we don’t find out about things like hackney carriage 
and private hire drivers’ offences until they have to seek a renewal. 

At that point they’’ know we will find out because always carry out checks. 

I believe we should be asking our officers to write to all hackney carriage and 
private hire firms explaining the situation and saying they have to ensure all 
drivers are aware of the rules. 

I want there to be no doubt that claiming a lack of understanding is not an 
excuse and once that letter has gone out we will make it very clear we will 
come down hard on those trying to manipulate the system. 

Keeping people safe and ensuring only those fit to hold a licence actually so is 
why we are here on this committee. 

Failure to tell us about any convictions, cautions or other relevant matters is a 
very serious matter and we are looking to change our policy to make it plan 
that any deception of this kind could lead to the revocation of the licence.” 

RESOLVED:

That the Licensing Committee recommends to Full Council the adoption 
of the revised Statement of Policy and Guidelines relating to the 
relevance of Convictions, Formal / Simple Cautions, Complaints and/or 
other matters, as attached as Appendix 1.

18. Applications Received 

The Principal Licensing Officer introduced the report to Members explaining 
that the report contained details of all applications received for any New, or 
Variation for a Premises Licence or Club Premises Certificate or a Temporary 
Event Notice; or any type of Gambling Premises Licence for the period of the 
1 September 2015 to 31 December 2015.

It was explained to members that allof these applications were dealt with 
under officer delegated authority.

Page 9



Members were advised that the ‘Sound on Music’ application, which had been 
scheduled for a Licensing Sub-Committee was able to be resolved before it 
reached the Sub-Committee, due to communications with the Public 
Protection team, the police and the Safety Advisory Group. 

The Head of Resident Services informed the Committee that all Members 
received a copy of all applications submitted on a weekly basis. 

RESOLVED:

That the Licensing Committee note the contents of the report.

The meeting finished at 8.10pm

Approved as a true and correct record

CHAIR

DATE

Any queries regarding these Minutes, please contact
Democratic Services at Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk

Page 10

mailto:Direct.Democracy@thurrock.gov.uk


7 July 2016 ITEM: 5

Licensing Committee
Review of the Statement of Principles under the Gambling 
Act 2005 
Wards and communities affected: 
All

Key Decision: 
Key

Report of: Paul Adams – Principal Licensing Officer

Accountable Head of Service: Lucy Magill  – Head of Residents Services

Accountable Director Steve Cox -  Corporate Director of Environment and Place

This report is: Public

Executive Summary

The Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) requires all local authorities to produce a 
statement of the principles, which they propose to apply when exercising their 
functions under the Act.

The Act also requires that any statement is kept under review and must be re-
published at least every three years. The current Statement of Principals is 
now due for review. This report seeks the views of Members of the Licensing 
Committee on the proposals before the revised documents go out for public 
consultation. 

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the draft reviewed Gambling 
Act Statement of Principles as in Appendix A, and agrees for public 
consultation; or

1.2 Suggests amendments and or inclusions to the statement for inclusion 
before public consultation.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 (the Act) requires a council, as 
the licensing authority, to produce, consult upon and publish a 
statement of the principles (the Statement) it intends to apply when 
exercising its function under the Act. A licensing authority’s function 
under section 349 may not be delegated by the authority.

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



2.2 This statement must be kept under review and be re-published at least 
every three years.

2.3 The Statement first came into effect in January 2007 and was 
subsequently reviewed in January 2010 and 2013. The 
Statement now requires review.

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1 The Council as a Licensing Authority is obliged to have a statement of 
Principles in place. The current Statement’s review date was 6th 
January 2016. The review has been delayed awaiting the publication of 
a revised guidance for Local Authorities, by the Gambling Commission, 
which was published in September 2015.

3.2 The current statement remains in effect, and will do so until any revision 
is approved at Council.

3.3 The revised draft statement is attached as Appendix A

3.4 The following points are a summary of the proposed changes to the 
Statement :

a) Insertion of information in relation to risk assessments and the 
publication of a Local Area Profile.

A Local Area Profile is produced by the Licensing Authority, which 
helps licence holders and prospective licence holders identify 
elements of the local community which may be vulnerable to 
gambling activities.   These vulnerabilities must be addressed by 
licence holders through their gambling operators risk assessments, 
which will be a consideration when assessing the suitability of 
applications. 

The Licensing Department is producing a series of maps as the 
Local Area Profile which will detail where all the currently licensed 
gambling premises are, where the vulnerable groups are located, 
which will include groups like schools, addiction clinics, homeless 
shelters.

It is intended that the Local Area Profile will sit as an appendix to 
this statement, to allow for it to be refreshed regularly, without the 
need to review the whole statement.

b) To incorporate the changes that have been made in relation to 
lotteries, under the Legislative Reform (Exempt Lotteries) Order 
2016, which came into effect on 6th April 2016. The order will enable 
lotteries to be provided as an incidental activity to another 
promotion, whether or not the main event is commercial or non-

Page 12



commercial. The results of incidental lotteries will no longer be 
required to be made public whilst the event is taking place and will 
enable lotteries to be used to raise funds for charity.

Private society lotteries will be able to raise funds for any purpose 
other than for private gain, removing the restriction that funds must 
be used for the purpose of the society alone. A private society 
includes any group or society whose main purpose is not connected 
with gambling, such as a religious group or sports club.

Workplace and residents lotteries will be allowed to be promoted for 
a purpose other than for private gain, such as raising funds for a 
charitable purpose.

Some of the details also required to be displayed on a private lottery 
ticket has been removed.

c) The Statement has been re-formatted to include additional section 
and paragraph numbers, for ease of reference.

d) The annex documentation has been updated to reflect current 
machine entitlements, procedural changes and other outdated 
details.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 This policy will require public consultation. The recommendation allows 
for the Policy to start the public consultation as written, or it allows for 
revisions or additions to be recommended for inclusion before the 
public consultation begins.

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

4.1 No formal consultation has been undertaken so far, following any 
comments made by the Licensing Committee; this policy will be placed 
for public consultation on the Councils website, with all local 
stakeholders written to asking for comments. Details of all stakeholders 
are provided within the associated statement documentation.

4.2 It is proposed that the consultation period will be 8 weeks, which is in 
line with the government’s guidance on consultation.

4.3 A final draft statement, along with any comments received will be 
presented to the Licensing Committee at the next meeting for 
consideration and referral to Council for adoption.

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and 
community impact

Page 13



6.1 None

7. Implications

7.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Laura Last
Senior Finance Officer.

There are no financial implications in relation to this report.

7.2 Legal

Implications verified by: Chris Pickering
Principal Solicitor - Litigation & 
Employment

Following public consultation the revised policy will have to be brought 
back to this committee for approval before being referred to Full Council 
for adoption.

7.3 Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by:  Becky Price
Community Development Officer 

The proposed changes to the Statement of Principles include the 
incorporation of a local area profile that highlights where vulnerable 
groups are located in efforts to mitigate potential risks through the 
application process for gambling operators.

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, 
Sustainability, Crime and Disorder)

None

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their 
location on the Council’s website or identification whether any are 
exempt or protected by copyright):

 None

9. Appendices to the report

 Appendix A - Draft reviewed Statement of Principles.

Page 14



Report Author:

Paul Adams
Principal Licensing Officer

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



THURROCK COUNCIL

DRAFT
Gambling Licensing

Policy Statement

Page 17



TTHHUURRRROOCCKK  CCOOUUNNCCIILL
  GAMBLINGGAMBLING  LICENSINGLICENSING  POLICYPOLICY  STATEMENTSTATEMENT

20162016

Contents Page
Foreword 3

PART A – General
1-1.1 Introduction 4

2-2.1 The Licensing Objectives 4

3-3.1 Description of District 4

4-4.5 Responsibilities under the Act 5

5-5.3 Statement of Licensing Policy 6

6-6.6 Consultation 6

7-7.2 Approval of Policy 7

8-8.2 Declaration 7

9-9,3 Responsible Authorities 7

10-10.6 Interested Parties 8

11-11.2 Exchange of information 9

12-12.1 Public Register 10

13-13.5 Compliance and Enforcement 10

14-14.1 Delegation of Powers 11

PART B – Premises Licences

15-15.15 General Principles 11

16-16.1 Provisional Statements 15

17-17.? Representations and Reviews 16

18-18.2 Adult Gaming Centres 16

18-19.2 (Licensed) Family Entertainment 
Centres 17

20-20.4 Casinos 17

21-21.3 Bingo Premises 18

22-22.3 Betting Premises 18

23-23.1 Tracks 18

24-24.1 Travelling Fairs 18

Page 18



1

PART C – Permits 
/Registrations
25-25.1 General 19

26-26.2 Unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centre Gaming Machine Permits 19

27-27.4 (Alcohol) Licensed Premises Gaming 
Machine Permits 20

28-28.2 Prize Gaming Permits 20

29-29.2 Club Gaming and Club Machine 
Permits 21

PART D –Occasional and 
Temporary permissions

APPENDICIES

The following appendices do not form part of the approved Statement of 
Gambling Licensing Policy but are included to assist applicants in meeting the 
requirements of the licensing process.

A Definitions

B Contact Details of Responsible 
Authorities

C Application Process

D Description of the District

E Advice for those who have difficulty in 
understanding English

F Terms of Reference and Delegated 
Powers

G List of Consultees

H Useful Contacts

Page 19



2

Foreword to Gambling Licensing Policy Statement

The Gambling Act 2005 provides the legal framework for the licensing and regulation of 
commercial gambling in this Country.  One of the responsibilities placed by the Act on local 
authorities, is to produce a Gambling Policy Statement.  This is the third Statement of 
Licensing Policy produced by Thurrock Council since the law came into effect.  It provides the 
basis for all gambling related licensing decisions taken by the Council as the Licensing 
Authority over the next three years, commencing on [DATE}. 

In applying this policy the Council will not be promoting gambling nor will it be restricting 
opportunities for individuals who wish to participate in Gambling. The statement simply sets 
out the principles that Thurrock Council will apply in exercising our licensing functions under 
the Act.  In applying the principles contained in this policy the Council seeks to work in 
partnership with the gambling industry and other bodies to ensure proper application of the 
licensing objectives of: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated 
with crime or disorder, or being used to support crime, 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited 

by gambling.

This policy has been produced in accordance with provisions of the Act, Regulations and 
Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission. It will be kept under review and will be 
amended when issues arise that make change necessary. In making decisions under this 
policy, the Council as the licensing authority will aim to achieve an effective balance between 
meeting the objectives of the Gambling Act 2005 and facilitating the sustainable economic 
growth of the borough.  

PART A
GENERAL

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This Statement of Licensing Policy sets out the principles by which Thurrock 
Council, as the Licensing Authority under the Gambling Act 2005 (referred to in 
this document as ‘the Act’), intends to apply in discharging its functions to 
licence premises for gambling under the Act as well as:-
 designating the body responsible for advising the Authority on the 

protection of children from harm;
 determining whether or not a person is an “Interested Party”;
 exchanging information with the Gambling Commission and others; and
 inspecting premises and instituting court proceedings for offences 

committed under the Act.

Page 20



3

2.0 THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES

2.1 In exercising most of its functions under the Act, Licensing Authorities must 
have regard to the Licensing Objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act.  The 
Licensing Objectives are:-

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling.

3.0 DESCRIPTION OF THE BOROUGH

3.1 Thurrock has a long and celebrated history; having played a vital role in the 
defense of the region, the capital and the realm.

Situated within the heart of the Thames Gateway in South Essex, just to the 
East of London, this thriving borough encompasses huge swathes of green belt 
country, with 18 miles (29km) of Thames frontage. The area's unique riverside 
location and vast natural resources is the key to its past and future 
development, growth and success.

Thurrock's economy has historically been driven by the presence of several 
large sectors - transport, logistics, port functions and retail account for a 
substantial part of the current economic landscape.

Thurrock has been considered a gateway between Britain and the rest of the 
world for decades and this still holds true today - DP World's presence in the 
borough is testimony to that.

Alongside these areas of peace and beauty, Thurrock is also home to one of 
the largest shopping complexes in Europe. All of this is just 40 minutes from 
the heart of The City.
The Thames Gateway corridor is Europe's largest regeneration program, 50 
per cent of which is being delivered in Thurrock. This status brings many 
opportunities but also some significant challenges - 26,000 new jobs and 
18,500 new homes by 2021.

In 2009 our population was estimated at 157,200 in 63,678 dwellings. Over 30 
different languages are currently spoken and this number is also expected to 
rise.  The council recognises the benefits of a diverse community and the 
potential impact of these trends on shaping the future of Thurrock. 
There are 3,634 commercial properties in Thurrock but the traditional 
manufacturing sector now only accounts for 11% of the business base. 
Whilst Thurrock’s ranking in deprivation has improved, but inequalities exist in 
parts of Tilbury, Belhus, Chadwell, Ockendon and West Thurrock with the gap 
biggest in health, crime, education and employment. 

Page 21



4

Thurrock Unitary Council was formed in the 1998 local government review.  
There are 20 electoral wards and 49 seats on the Council. Ordinarily, Members 
serve for a mandate of four years.

4.0 RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER THE ACT

4.1 The Act introduced a licensing regime for commercial gambling, to be 
conducted by the Gambling Commission and by Licensing Authorities, 
depending on the matter to be licensed.

4.2 The Act establishes each District or Borough Council as the Licensing Authority 
whose responsibilities must be discharged by the Licensing Committee created 
under Section 6 of the Licensing Act 2003.  Thurrock Council is the Licensing 
Authority for the Borough of Thurrock.

4.3 The Gambling Commission is responsible for issuing Operating and Personal 
licences to persons and organisations who:-

 operate a casino;
 provide facilities for playing bingo or for pool betting;
 provide betting or act as intermediaries for betting;
 make gaming machines available for use in Adult Gaming Centres and 

Family Entertainment Centres;
 manufacture, supply, install, adapt, maintain or repair gaming machines;
 manufacture, supply, install or adapt gambling machine software; or
 promote a lottery.

4.4 The Licensing Authority is responsible for licensing premises in which gambling 
takes place.  All types of gambling are included, other than spread betting and 
the National Lottery.  It is also responsible for issuing permits for premises with 
gaming machines and for receiving notices from operators wishing to use 
unlicensed premises for gambling on a temporary basis.  The Licensing 
Authority has additional responsibility for the registration of certain types of 
exempt Small Society Lotteries.

4.5 The Licensing Authority cannot become involved in the moral issues of gambling 
and must aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as they think it 
is:- 

a) in accordance with any relevant codes of practice;
b) in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
c) reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives, subject to the two 

bullet points above, and
d) subject to the three bullet points above, in accordance with the Licensing 

Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

Page 22



5

Before the Licensing Authority can determine an application for a Premises 
Licence, an Operating and Personal Licence, or both, must have been obtained 
from the Gambling Commission.

5.0 STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY

5.1 The Licensing Authority is required by the Act to publish a Statement of 
Licensing Policy which contains the principles it proposes to apply when 
exercising its functions under the Act.

5.2 This Policy must be published every three years.  The Policy must also be 
reviewed from ’time to time’ and any proposed amendments and/or additions 
must be subject to fresh consultation.  The ‘new’ Policy must then be 
published.

5.3 This Policy takes effect on [DATE], and replaces the policy previously in 
force.

6.0 CONSULTATION

6.1 In producing this Policy, the Licensing Authority consulted widely before 
finalising and publishing it.  In addition to the statutory consultees (listed 
below), the Council chose to consult with additional local groups and 
individuals.  A list of these other groups and persons consulted is provided at 
Annex ?

6.2 The Act requires that the following parties are consulted by the Licensing 
Authority:-
 The chief officer of police for the Authority’s area;
 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 

interests of persons carrying on gambling businesses in the Authority’s 
area; and

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the 
interests of persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the 
Authority’s functions under the Act.

6.3 The other groups and people consulted were:-

 Organisations, working with who are problem;
 Other elements of local government;

Page 23



6

 Businesses who are, or will be, holders of Premises Licences;
 Responsible Authorities under the Act.

6.4 Consultation took place between [DATE]and [DATE].

6.5 A full list of comments made and details of the Council’s consideration of those 
comments is available by request to Licensing Department or via the Licensing 
Authority’s website at www.thurrock.gov.uk

7.0 APPROVAL OF POLICY

7.1 This Policy was approved at a meeting of the full Council on [Date to be 
confirmed] and was published via its website on [Date to be confirmed]. 
Copies are available on request.

7.2 It should be noted that this Policy does not override the right of any person to 
make an application, to make representations about an application, or to apply 
for a review of a licence, as each case will be considered on its own merit and 
according to the requirements of the Act.

8.0 DECLARATION

8.1 The Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to the Licensing 
Objectives, formal Guidance issued to Licensing Authorities and any responses 
from those consulted during the consultation process, and will adopt the 
Principles of Better Regulation.

8.2 The Council recognises its responsibilities under equality legislation and will 
monitor the impact of these statutory duties through its various corporate 
schemes such as the Race Equality Scheme and the Disability Equality 
Scheme.

8.2 Appendices have been attached to this statement providing further information 
and guidance that is intended only to assist readers and should not be 
interpreted as legal advice or as constituent of the Council’s policy.   Readers 
of this document are strongly advised to seek their own legal advice if they are 
unsure of the requirements of the Gambling Act 2005, or the guidance or 
regulations issued under the Act.

9.0 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

9.1 A full list of the Responsible Authorities designated under the Act and their 
contact details are given in Appendix B.  It should be noted that under the Act, 
the Licensing Authority itself is designated as a Responsible Authority.

9.2 The Licensing Authority is required to designate, in writing, a body that is 
competent to advise it about the protection of children from harm.  In making 
this designation the following principles have been applied:-

Page 24



7

 the competency of the body to advise the Licensing Authority;
 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole 

of the Licensing Authority’s area; and
 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected 

persons rather than any particular invested interest group etc.

9.3 In accordance with the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local Authorities, 
this Authority designates Thurrock Council’s Children, Education and Families 
Service, for this purpose.

10.0 INTERESTED PARTIES

10.1 Interested Parties can make representations about licensing applications or 
apply for a review of an existing licence.  An Interested Party is defined in the 
Act as follows:-

’… a person is an interested party in relation to a premises licence or in relation 
to an application for or in respect of a premises if, in the opinion of the 
Licensing Authority which issues the licence or to which the application is 
made, the person:-

a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by 
the authorised activities, 

b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised 
activities, or

c) represents persons who satisfy paragraphs (a) or (b).’

10.2 Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected, such as 
Councillors and Members of Parliament.  Where appropriate this will include 
county, parish and town councillors.

Interested parties can also be trade associations, trade unions, residents’ 
associations and tenants’ associations.  Providing that these people represent 
those living or having business interests in the area which might be affected, no 
specific evidence of authorisation in requires.

Otherwise, the licensing authority will generally require a third party to produce 
some form of authorisation to speak on behalf of the interested party.

10.3 Whether a person is an interested party will be determined on a case by case 
basis.  The types of organisations which may be considered to have business 
interests will be given a wide interpretation.

10.4 In determining if a person lives or has business interests sufficiently close to 
the premises that they are likely to be affected by the authorised activities, the 
Licensing Authority will consider the following factors:-

 The size of the premises;

Page 25



8

 The nature of the premises;
 The distance of the premises from the location of the person making the 

representation;
 The potential impact of the premises (e.g. number of customers, routes 

likely to be taken by those visiting the establishment);
 The circumstances of the complainant.  This does not mean the 

personal characteristics of the complainant but the interests of the 
complainant, which may be relevant to the distance from the premises.  
For example, it could be reasonable for an authority to conclude that 
“sufficiently close to be likely to be affected” could have a different 
meaning for (a) a private resident (b) a residential school for children 
with truanting problems and (c) residential hostels for vulnerable adults;

 The catchment area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit); 
and

 whether the person making the representation has business interests in 
that catchment area that might be affected.

10.5 The Licensing Authority will decide if a representation made in respect of an 
application is valid based on the following factors:
 It is not frivolous or vexatious;
 It raises issues that relate to Guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
 It raises issues that relate to this policy;
 It relates to the Licensing Objectives

11.0 EXCHANGE OF INFORMATION

11.1 In its exchange of information with parties listed in Schedule 6 of the Act, the 
Licensing Authority will have regard to:-

 the provisions of the Act, which include the provision that the Data 
Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened;

 the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission;
 other relevant Legislation and Regulations

11.2 In accordance with Section 350 of the Gambling Act 2005, the Licensing 
Authority may exchange information with the following statutory bodies or 
individuals:
 A constable or police force;
 An enforcement officer;
 A licensing authority;
 Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs;
 The Gambling Appeal Tribunal;
 The Secretary of State;
 Scottish Ministers; and
 Any other person or body designated by the Secretary of State in 

accordance with the Act.

Page 26



9

11.3 The Licensing Authority may also exchange information provided by applicants 
with law enforcement agencies for purposes connected with the prevention and 
detection of crime, but we will only share any personal details for this purpose 
unless required to do so by law.

12.0 PUBLIC REGISTER

12.1 The Licensing Authority is required to keep a public register and share 
information in it with the Gambling Commission and others.  Regulations 
prescribe what information should be kept in the register.  Copies of the 
register may be obtained on payment of a fee.

13.0 COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

13.1 In exercising its functions with regard to the inspection of premises and to 
instituting criminal proceedings in respect of offences specified, the Licensing 
Authority will follow best practice.  

This requires that actions should be:-
 Proportionate –  Intervention will only be when necessary.  Remedies 

should be appropriate to the risk posed and costs identified and 
minimised.

 Accountable –  The Authorities must be able to justify decisions and be 
subject to public scrutiny.

 Consistent  –  Rules and standards must be joined up and implemented 
fairly.

 Transparent  –  Enforcement should be open and regulations kept 
simple and user friendly.

 Targeted  –  Enforcement should be focused on the problems and 
minimise side effects.

13.2 The Licensing Authority will endeavour to avoid duplication with other 
regulatory regimes, so far as is possible, and adopt a risk based inspection 
programme.  All enforcement action is taken having regard to the Council’s 
Public Protection Enforcement Policy.

13.3 The main enforcement and compliance role of the Licensing Authority in terms 
of the Act is to ensure compliance with the Premises Licence and other 
permissions which it authorises.  The Gambling Commission is the 
enforcement body for Operating and Personal Licences.  Concerns about the 
manufacturer, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by the 
Licensing Authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.

13.4 The Licensing Authority will keep itself informed of developments as regards 
the work of the Better Regulation Executive in its consideration of the 
regulatory functions of Local Authorities, and will have regard to best practice.

13.5 Where appropriate complaints will be investigated in accordance with the 
stepped approach outlined in the Public Protection Enforcement Policy.  A copy 

Page 27



10

of this document is available on the Council’s website.  In the first instance we 
encourage complaints to be raised directly with the licensee or business 
concerned.

14.0 DELEGATION OF POWERS

14.1 The Licensing Authority has agreed a scheme of delegation for discharging its 
functions under the Act and this can be found in Appendix F

PART B
PREMISES LICENCES

15.0 GENERAL PRINCIPLES

15.1 Premises Licences are subject to the permissions/restrictions set out in the Act 
as well as the specific mandatory and default conditions detailed in Regulations 
issued by the Secretary of State.  The Licensing Authority is able to exclude 
default conditions and also attach others, where it is thought appropriate.

15.2 In accordance with section 150 of the Act, premises licences can authorise the 
provision of facilities on:
 Casino premises;
 Bingo premises;
 Betting premises, including tracks and premises used by betting 

intermediaries;
 Adult gaming centre premises (for category B3, B4, C and D machines);
 Family entertainment centre premises (for category C and D machines) 

(note that, separate to this category, the licensing authority may issue a 
family entertainment centre gaming machine permit, which authorises 
the use of category D machines only).

15.3 Each case will be decided on its merits, and will depend upon the type of 
gambling that is proposed, as well as taking into account how the applicant proposes 
that the Licensing Objectives concerns can be overcome.

15.4 The Licensing Authorities is required by the Act, in making decisions about 
Premises Licences, to permit the use of premises for gambling so far as it 
thinks fit:-
 in accordance with any relevant Codes of Practice (LCCP) under section 

24 of the Act;
 in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission under Section 25;
 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives (subject to the two 

bullet points above); and
 in accordance with the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing 

Policy (subject to the three bullet points above).

Page 28



11

15.5 Definition of Premises:
In the Act as ‘premises’ is defined as including ’any place’.  It is for the 
Licensing Authority (having due regard for the Gambling Commission 
Guidance) to determine on the merits of each application whether different 
parts of a building can be regarded properly as separate premises.

The Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to applications where 
access to the licensed premises is through other premises (which themselves 
may be licensed or unlicensed).

The authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance 
with regard to applications for multiple licences for a building, or those for a 
specific part of the building to be licensed.  The Guidance directs the Authority 
that premises should be configured so that children “are not invited to 
participate in, have accidental access to, or closely observe gambling where 
they are prohibited from participating”; that “Entrances to and exits from parts 
of a building covered by one or more premises licences should be separate 
and identifiable so that the separation of different premises is not compromised 
and people do not ‘drift’ into a gambling area”; and that “Customers should be 
able to participate in the activity named on the premises licence”.

Where considering applications where access to the licensed premises is 
through other premises (which themselves may be licensed or unlicensed), the 
Authority will consider, as per the Guidance, whether taken as a whole, the co-
location of the licensed premises with other facilities may have the effect of 
creating an arrangement that otherwise would, or should, be prohibited under 
the Act.

15.6 Demand:

The authority is aware that demand issues (e.g. the likely demand or need for 
gambling facilities in an area) cannot be considered with regard to the location 
of premises but that considerations in terms of the licensing objectives can.  
The authority will pay particular attention to the protection of children and 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as 
issues of crime and disorder.

15.7 Location:
Location will only be material consideration in the context of the Licensing 
Objectives.

With regard to these objectives, it is the authority’s policy, upon receipt of any 
relevant representations to look at specific location issues including:

 The possible impact a gambling premises may have on any premises 
that provide services to children or young people, i.e. school, or 
vulnerable adult centres in the area;

Page 29



12

 The possible impact a gambling premises may have on residential areas 
where there may be a high concentration of families with children;

 The size of the premises and the nature of the activities taking place;
 Any levels of organised crime in the area.

In order for location to be considered, the authority will need to be satisfied that 
there is sufficient evidence that the particular location of the premises would be 
harmful to the licensing objectives.  From 6 April 2016, it is a requirement of the 
Gambling Commission’s Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), 
under section 10, for licensees to assess the local risk to the licensing 
objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at their premises and 
have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks.  In 
making risk assessments, licensees must take into account relevant matters 
identified in this policy.

The LCCP goes on to say licensees must review (and update as necessary) 
their local risk assessments:

 To take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including 
those identified in this policy;

 When there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may 
affect their mitigation of local risks;

 When applying for a variation of a premises licence; and
 In any case, undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new 

premises licence.

The authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider as a minimum:
 Whether the premises is in an area of deprivation;
 Whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or 

disorder;
 The ethnic profile of residents in the area;
 The demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups;
 The location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, top 

shops, leisure centres and other areas where children will gather.

In any case the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people, 
including people with gambling dependencies, are protected.

Other matters that the assessment may include:
 The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of 

excessive gambling, the ability to staff to offer brief intervention and how 
the manning of premises affect this;

 Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and 
how the system will be monitored;

 The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of 
people using the premises;

 The number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one 
time.  If at any time that number is one, confirm the supervisory and 
monitoring arrangements when that person is absent from the licensed 

Page 30



13

area or distracted from supervising the premises and observing those 
persons using the premises.

 Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and 
vulnerable persons, which may include dedicated and trained personnel, 
leaflets, posters, self-exclusion schemes, window displays and 
advertisements not to entice passers-by etc.

 The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, 
gambling care providers and other relevant information be provided in 
both English and the other prominent first language for that locality;

 Where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in 
respect of a track, the location and extent of any part of the premises 
which will be used to provide facilities for gambling in reliance on the 
licence.

Such information may be used to inform the decision the authority makes about 
whether to grant the licence, to grant the licence with special conditions or to 
refuse the application.

This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application 
will be decided on its merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show 
how the concerns can be overcome.

15.8 Local Area Profile

Each locality has its own character and challenges.  In order to assess 
applicants, where there is an issue in a local area which impacts on how the 
applicant should complete their risk assessment, the authority may publish a 
local area profile.  This profile, can be obtained from the Council’s website.

The local area profiles should be given careful consideration when making an 
application.  Applicants may be asked to attend a meeting with licensing 
officers to discuss the profiles, appropriate measures to mitigate risk in the area 
and how they might be relevant to their application.  The local area profiles will 
be presented to any subsequent licensing sub-committee when they determine 
an application that has received representations.

The authority recognises that it cannot insist on applicants using the local area 
profiles when completing their risk assessments, however an applicant who 
decides to disregard the profiles may face additional representations and the 
expense of a hearing as a result.

15.9 Duplication with other Regulatory Regimes:
Duplication with other statutory/regulatory regimes will be avoided where 
possible.  This Authority will not consider whether a licence application is likely 
to be granted Planning Permission or Building Control consent.

The Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities states:

Page 31



14

‘7.58 In determining applications, the licensing authority should not take into 
consideration matters that are not related to gambling and the licensing 
objectives.  One example would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining 
planning permission or building regulations approval for their proposal…’

‘7.65 When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, 
the licensing authority should not take into account whether those buildings 
have to comply with the necessary planning or building consents.  Nor should 
fire or health and safety risks be taken into account.  Those matters should be 
dealt with under relevant planning control, building and other regulations, and 
must not form part of the consideration for the premises licence.  S201 of the 
Act prevents licensing authorities taking into account the likelihood of the 
proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when 
considering a premises licence application.  Equally, the grant of a gambling 
premises licence does not prejudice or prevent any action that may be 
appropriate under the law relating to planning or building.’

This licensing authority places due regard on these extracts from the Guidance 
(September 2015 version).  The Licensing Authority is aware that in May 2015 
the Government introduced additional planning controls in relation to betting 
offices, removing them from Class D2 use to a ‘sui generis’ use.  This means 
that Betting Shops have been taken out of the planning ‘use’ classes and will 
need to receive planning approval.  This has enabled Planning Authorities to 
exercise stricter controls over these uses, and this Authority would expect 
applicants for new Gambling Premises Licences to have been granted 
permission to use prospective premises for the proposed operation subject of 
the licence application.

15.10 Licensing Objectives:  
Premises Licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the Licensing 
Objectives.  With regard to these objectives, the following will be considered:-

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, 
being associated with crime or disorder, or being used to support 
crime  –  The Licensing Authority is aware that there is a distinction 
between disorder and nuisance and that the prevention of nuisance is 
not a Licensing Objective under the Act.

Whilst the Licensing Authority is aware that the Gambling Commission 
takes a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of 
crime, it will pay attention to the proposed location of gambling premises 
in terms of this Licensing Objective.

Where an area has known high levels of organised crime, the Licensing 
Authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises are suitable 
to be located there and the need for conditions, such as the provision of 
Door Supervisors.

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way  –

Page 32



15

The Gambling Commission does not generally expect Licensing 
Authorities to be concerned with ensuring that gambling is conducted in 
a fair and open way.

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling –
In practice, the Objective of protecting children from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling often means preventing them from taking part in, 
or being in close proximity to, gambling.

There is no definition of the term ‘vulnerable person’ in the Act, but this 
could include people who are gambling beyond their means and people 
who may not be able to make informed or balanced decisions about 
gambling due to a mental impairment, or substance misuse of alcohol or 
drugs.

The licensing authority will consider very carefully whether applications 
for Premises Licences in respect of gambling premises located close to 
schools, centres for gambling addicts, or residential areas where there 
may be a high concentration of families with children , should be 
granted.

15.11 Conditions:

The Licensing Authority is aware that the mandatory and default conditions 
imposed by the Gambling Commission will normally be sufficient to regulate 
gambling premises. In exceptional cases where there are specific risks or 
problems associated with a particular locality, specific premises or class of 
premises, the Authority may consider attaching individual conditions related to 
the licensing objectives.

Any conditions attached to Licences will be proportionate and will be:-
 relevant to the need to make the proposed premises suitable as a 

gambling facility;
 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for;
 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and
 reasonable in all other respects.

In addition, the Licensing Authority will examine how applicants propose to 
address the licensing objectives.  In considering applications the Licensing 
Authority will particularly take into account the following, if deemed appropriate:
 Proof of age schemes
 Closed Circuit Television
 Door Supervisors
 Supervision of entrances/machine areas;
 Physical separation of areas;
 Location of entrances;
 Notices and signage;
 The training of staff to deal with suspect truants and vulnerable persons;

Page 33



16

 Specific opening hours; and 
 With particular regard to vulnerable persons, measures such as the use 

of self- barring schemes, provision of information, leaflets, helpline 
numbers for organisations such as GamCare.

This list is not exhaustive but indicative of examples.

15.12 It is recognised that there are conditions which the Licensing Authority cannot 
attach to Premises Licences.  These are:-
 any conditions on the Premises Licence which make it impossible to 

comply with an Operating Licence condition;
 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method 

of operation;
 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required 

(the Act specifically removes the membership requirement for casino 
and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated);

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, and the winning of prizes.

15.13 Credit:

Credit facilities are prohibited from being provided in casinos and bingo 
licensed premises.  Cash machines (ATM’s) may be installed in such premises 
but the licensing authority may apply conditions as to where they are sited.

15.14 Betting Machines [See Annex ? for definition]: 

In relation to Casinos, Betting Premises and Tracks, the Licensing Authority 
can restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the circumstances 
in which they are made available by attaching a licence condition to a Betting 
Premises Licence or to a Casino Premises Licence (where betting is permitted 
in the Casino).

15.15 When considering whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of 
betting machines in particular premises, the Licensing Authority, among other 
things, shall take into account:-

 the size of the premises;
 the number of counter positions available for person to person 

transactions; and
 the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and 

young persons or by vulnerable persons.  

15.16 In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 
machines, each application will be considered on its own merit and account will 
be taken of Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Act.

Page 34



17

16.0 PROVISIONAL STATEMENTS

16.1 An application for a provisional statement may be made in respect of 
premises which the applicant:
 expects to be constructed;
 expects to be altered;
 expects to acquire a right to occupy.

16.2 The applicant should refer to the Act and the detailed information provided in 
the Guidance.

17.0 REVIEWS

17.1 Application for a Review of a Premises Licence may be made by Responsible 
Authorities and Interested Parties.

17.2 The Licensing Authority can make a representation or apply for a review of the 
Premises Licence on the basis of any reason that it thinks is appropriate.  For 
the purpose of exercising its discretion in these matters, the Authority has 
designated the Council’s Group Manager (Regulation), as being the proper 
persons to act on its behalf.

17.3 It is for the Licensing Authority to decide whether the review is to be carried out.  
This decision will generally be on the basis of whether the request for the 
review is relevant to the matters listed below:

 Whether the grounds for the request raises issues relevant to the principles 
to be applied by the Licensing Authority and set out within the Licensing 
Authority Statement of Policy;

 whether the grounds for the request are frivolous or vexatious
 whether the grounds for the request would certainly not cause the Authority 

to alter/revoke/suspend the premises licence;
 whether the grounds for the request are substantially the same as previous 

representations or requests for a review;
 In accordance with any relevant codes of practice issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
 In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling 

Commission;
 Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.

17.4 There is no appeal, other than by way of Judicial Review, against the 
Authority’s determination of the relevance of an application for review.

18.0 ADULT GAMING CENTRES 

18.1 An Adult Gaming Centre is defined in Annex ?.  Entry to these premises is age 
restricted.

Page 35



18

18.2 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

19.0 LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES

19.1 A licensed Family Entertainment Centre is defined in Annex ?  Entry to these 
premises is not generally age restricted although entry to certain areas may be 
restricted, dependent on the category of machines available for use.

19.2 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

20.0 CASINOS

20.1 A casino is defined in Annex ?  Entry to these premises is age restricted.

20.2 The Licensing Authority is empowered to pass a resolution not to issue new 
licences for casinos in it area.  

20.3 Thurrock Council has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of 
the Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so. The Council 
would consider hosting a casino in Thurrock should the ability to do so arise 
with any future changes in legislation.

20.4 In making this decision the Licensing Authority consulted widely on this specific 
issue.

20.5 Casinos and Competitive Bidding

The Licensing Authority is aware that where a Licensing Authority’s area is 
enabled to grant a premises licence for a new style casino, there are likely to be 
a number of operators that will want to run a casino.  In such situations the 
council will run a competition in line with regulations and codes of practice 
issued under the Act by the Secretary of State.  It should be noted that at the 
time this Statement of Licensing Policy was adopted this area had not been so 
enabled.

20.5 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

20.6 Betting Machines:

20.7 Conditions may be imposed in accordance with paragraphs 15.14, 15.15 and 
15.16 above.

20.8 In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 
machines, each application will be on its own merits and account will be taken 
of Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Act.

Page 36



19

20.9 Credit:

Credit facilities are prohibited in casinos; however, this does not prevent the 
installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the premises, although the Licensing 
Authority may attach conditions as to the siting of such machines.

21.0 BINGO PREMISES

21.1 Bingo is defined in Annex ?  Entry to these premises is not generally age 
restricted although entry to certain areas may be restricted, dependent on the 
category of machines available for use.

21.2 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

21.3 Credit:

Credit facilities are prohibited in premises licensed for Bingo, however, this 
does not prevent the installation of cash dispensers (ATMs) on the premises, 
although the Licensing Authority may attach conditions as to the siting of such 
machines.

22.0 BETTING PREMISES 

22.1 Betting is defined in Annex ?.  Entry to these premises is age restricted.

22.2 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

23.0 BETTING MACHINES

23.1 Conditions may be imposed in accordance with paragraphs 15.14, 15.15 and 
15.16 above.

23.1 In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 
machines, each application will be on its own merits and account will be taken 
of Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Act.

24.0 TRACKS

24.1 A track is defined in Annex ?  Entry to these premises may be age restricted.  
Please refer to the Gambling Commission Guidance

24.2 The Licensing Authority will take account of any conditions applied to an 
Operating Licence in respect of such premises.

24.3 BETTING MACHINES

Page 37



20

24.4 Conditions may be imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 15.14, 15.15 and 
15.16 above.

24.4 In deciding whether to impose conditions to limit the number of betting 
machines, each application will be on its own merits and account will be taken 
of Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Act.

25.0 TRAVELLING FAIRS

25.1 Travelling fairs have traditionally been able to provide various types of low 
stake gambling without the need for a licence or permit provided that certain 
conditions are met and this provision continues in similar fashion under the Act.

25.2 Travelling fairs have the right to provide an unlimited number of category D 
gaming machines and/or equal chance prize gaming (without the need for a 
permit) as long as the gambling amounts to no more than ancillary amusement 
at the fair.

25.3 The Licensing Authority will consider whether any fairs which take up the above 
entitlement  fall within the statutory definition of a travelling fair.

25.4 It will fall to this Licensing Authority to determine whether, where category D 
machines and/or equal chance prize gaming without a permit is to be made 
available for use at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement that the facilities 
for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at a travelling fair 
is met.  Current stakes and prizes can be found at Appendix ?

25.5 Fairs cannot be held on a piece of land for more than 27 days per calendar 
year, regardless of whether it is the same or different travelling fair occupying 
the land.  The Licensing Authority will work with its neighbouring authorities to 
ensure that land which crosses the administrative boundaries is monitored so 
that statutory limits are not exceeded.

PART C
PERMITS/TEMPORARY OR OCCASIONAL USE 

NOTICES/REGISTRATIONS

26.0 GENERAL

26.1 The Act introduced a range of permits for gambling which are granted by 
Licensing Authorities.  Permits are required when premises provide a gambling 
facility but either the stakes and prizes are very low or gambling is not the main 
function of the premises.  The permits regulate gambling and the use of gaming 
machines in a specific premises.  With the exception of limiting machine 

Page 38



21

numbers on Licensed Premises Gaming Machine permits, the Licensing 
Authority any only grant or reject an application for a permit.  No conditions 
may be attached.

27.0 Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits

27.1 Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide 
Gaming machines, it can apply to the Licensing Authority for a Permit.  It 
should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises will be wholly 
or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use.

27.2 The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are written 
policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm in this 
context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection 
considerations.  The suitability of such policies and procedures will be 
considered on their merits, however, they may include:-

 A Disclosure and Barring check for the applicant and the person 
having the day to day control of the premises;

 Proof of age schemes;
 How the applicant proposes to ensure that children will be protected 

from harm whilst on the premises;
 Training covering how staff would deal with:-

o unsupervised, very young children being on the premises, or
o children causing perceived problems on/around the premises.
o suspect truant children.

In addition, applicants should be able to demonstrate  a full understanding of the 
maximum stakes and prizes (and that staff are suitably trained in this respect).

28.0 (ALCOHOL) LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMITS

28.1 There is provision in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for 
consumption on the premises to automatically have two gaming machines, of 
Categories C and/or D via notification to the Licensing Authority. 

28.2 Gaming machines can only be located on licensed premises that have a bar for 
serving customers.

28.3 Premises restricted to selling alcohol only with food, will not be able to have 
gaming machines or apply for a Permit.

28.4 Where an application for more than two gaming machines is received, the 
Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children 
and vulnerable persons from harm, or being exploited by gambling and will 
expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will be sufficient 
measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult 
only machines.  Measures will cover such issues as:-

 Adult machines being in sight of the bar;
 Adult machines being in sight of staff who will monitor that the machines 

are not being used by those under 18;

Page 39



22

 Appropriate notices and signage; and
 As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, the Licensing Authority 

will consider measures such as the use of self-barring schemes, 
provision of information, leaflets and/or help line numbers for 
organisations such as GamCare.

 Relevant Codes of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission.

The Licensing Authority can decide to grant an application with a smaller 
number of machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied 
for but conditions other than these cannot be attached.

29.0 PRIZE GAMING PERMITS [See Annex ? for definition]

29.1 The Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are written 
policies and procedures in place to protect children from harm.  Harm in this 
context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider child protection 
considerations.  The suitability of such policies and procedures will be 
considered on their merits, however, they may include:-

 A basic Disclosure and Barring check for the applicant and the person 
having the day to day control of the premises; Proof of age schemes;

 How the applicant proposes to ensure that children will be protected 
from harm whilst on the premises;

 Training covering how staff would deal with:-
o unsupervised, very young children being on the premises;
o  children causing perceived problems on/around the premises;
o Suspected truant children.

In addition applicants should be able to demonstrate a full understanding of maximum 
stakes and prizes (and that staff are suitably trained in this respect).

In making its decision on an application for a Permit, the Licensing Authority does not 
need to have regard to the Licensing Objectives but must have regard to any 
Gambling Commission guidance.

30.0 CLUB GAMING AND CLUB MACHINE PERMITS

30.1 Members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes may apply for a Club Gaming 
Permit and/or a Club Gaming Machine Permit, but are restricted by category 
and number of machines and to equal chance gaming and games of chance.

30.2 Commercial clubs may apply for a club machine permit, subject to restrictions.

30.3 The gambling provided under the authority of a club gaming permit must also 
meet the following conditions:

(a) in respect of gaming machines:

Page 40



23

 No child or young person may use a category B or C machine on the 
premises;

 That the holder must comply with any relevant provision of a code of 
practice about the location and operation of gaming machines.

(b) The public, children and young persons must be excluded from any area 
of the premises where the gaming is taking place.

30.4 Section 273 of the Act sets out the conditions that will apply to the club 
machine permit, including that in respect of gaming machines no child or young 
person uses a category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder 
complies with any relevant provision of a code of practice about the location 
and operation of gaming machines.

PART D
OCCASIONAL AND TEMPORARY PERMISSIONS

31.0 TEMPORARY USE NOTICES (TUN)

31.1 A ‘TUN’ is defined in Annex ?

31.2 A TUN may only be granted to a person or company holding an operating 
licence relevant to the temporary use of the premises.  Regulations issued by 
the Secretary of State prescribe the activities to be covered.  At present a 
Temporary Use Notice can only be issued for equal chance gaming.

31.3 For the purpose of a TUN, a set of premises is the subject of a TUN if any part 
of the premises is the subject of the Notice.  This prevents one large premises 
from having a TUN in effect for more than 21 days per year by giving a Notice 
in respect of different parts.

31.4 The definition of “a set of premises” will be a question of fact in the particular 
circumstances of each Notice that is given.  In considering whether a place falls 
within the definition of “a set of premises” the Licensing Authority will consider, 
amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the premises.

31.5 The Licensing Authority will object to Notices where it appears that there effect 
would be to permit regular gambling in a place that could be described as one 
set of premises.

32.0 OCCASIONAL USE NOTICES (OUN)

32.1 Occasion Use Notices are defined in Annex ? Occasional Use Notices, apply 
only to tracks, which are described as being premises on any part of which a 
race or other sporting events take place, or is intended to take place.  Tracks 
need not be a permanent fixture.

Page 41



24

32.2 OUN’s are intended to permit licensed betting operators who have the 
appropriate permission of the Gambling Commission to use tracks for short 
periods for conducting betting.  The OUN dispenses with the need for a Betting 
Premises Licence for the track.

32.3 The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these Notices, 
aside from ensuring that a statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not 
exceeded.

32.4 The Licensing Authority will, however, consider the definition of a track and 
whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the Notice.

33.0 SMALL SOCIETY LOTTERIES

33.1 The definition of a Small Society Lottery is contained in Annex ? and these 
require registration with the Licensing Authority. 

34.0 APPENDICIES

34.1 Appendices have been attached to this Statement providing further 
information and guidance and they are intended only to assist readers 
and should not be interpreted as legal advice or as constituent of the 
Licensing Authority’s policy.  Readers of this document are strongly 
advised to seek their own legal advice if they are unsure of the 
requirements of the Act, or the guidance or regulations issued under 
the Act.

A DEFINITIONS

B CONTACT DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES

C APPLICATION PROCESS

D DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT

E ADVICE FOR THOSE WHO HAVE DIFFICULTY IN UNDERSTANDING 
ENGLISH

F DELEGATED POWERS

G USEFUL CONTACTS

Page 42



DEFINITIONS        Appendix A

Adult Gaming Centre Premises in respect of which an Adult Gaming Centre 
Premises Licence has effect.

Authorised Local 
Authority Officer

A Licensing Authority Officer who is an authorised person 
for a purpose relating to premises in that Authority’s area.

AWP machines Amusement with Prizes Machines 

BACTA British Amusement Catering Trade Association 

Betting Machines A machine designed or adapted for use to bet on future 
real events (not a Gaming Machine). 

Bingo A game of equal chance. 

Casino An arrangement whereby people are given an opportunity 
to participate in one or more casino games. 

Casino Games Games of chance that are not equal chance gaming. 

Casino Premises 
Licence Categories 

a) Regional Casino Premises Licence 

b) Large Casino Premises Licence 

c) Small Casino Premises Licence 

d) Casinos permitted under transitional arrangements 

Child Individual who is less than 16 years old. 

Club Gaming Machine Permit to enable the premises to provide gaming machines 

Page 43



1

Permit (3 machines of Categories B, C or D) 

Club Gaming Permit Permit to enable the premises to provide gaming machines 
(3 machines of Categories B C or D), equal chance gaming 
and games of chance. 

Conditions Conditions to be attached to licences by way of:-

 Automatic provision

 Regulations provided by Secretary of State

 Conditions provided by Gambling Commission

 Conditions provided by Licensing Authority

Conditions may be general in nature (either attached to all 
licences or all licences of a particular nature) or may be 
specific to a particular licence.

Customer Lotteries Lotteries run by the occupiers of business premises who 
sell tickets only to customers present on their premises. 
These lotteries may not be conducted on vessels. 

Default Conditions Conditions that will apply unless the Licensing Authority 
decides to exclude them. This may apply to all Premises 
Licences, to a class of Premises Licence or Licences for 
specified circumstances. 

Delegated Powers Decisions delegated either to a Licensing Committee, Sub-
Committee or Licensing Officers.

Disorder No set interpretation, however, likely to be connected to the 
way gambling is being conducted. In the case of gambling 
premises licences, disorder is intended to mean activity 
that is more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance. 

Page 44



2

Equal Chance Gaming Games that do not involve playing or staking against a 
bank and where the chances are equally favourable to all 
participants 

Exempt Lotteries Lotteries specified in the Gambling Act as permitted to be 
run without a licence from the Gambling Commission. 
There are 4 types: 

 Small Society Lottery (required to register with 
Licensing Authorities. 

 Incidental Non Commercial Lotteries 
 Private Lotteries 
 Customer Lotteries 

Exchange of 
Information

Exchanging of information with other regulatory bodies 
under the Gambling Act.

External Lottery 
Manager

An individual, firm or company appointed by the Small 
Lottery Society to manage a lottery on their behalf.  They 
are consultants who generally take their fees from the 
expenses of the lottery.

Gaming Prize gaming if the nature and size of the prize is not 
determined by the number of people playing or the amount 
paid for or raised by the gaming. The prizes will be 
determined by the operator before the play commences. 

Gaming Machine Machine covering all types of gambling activity, including 
betting on virtual events. 

Categories 

Max. Stake Max Prize 

A Unlimited 

B1 £5      £10000 *

Page 45



3

B2 £100   £500

B3 £2      £500 

B3A £2    £500

B4 £2      £400

C £1        £100

D – money prize 10p           £5

D – non-money prize (other than crane grab machine or a coin 
pusher or penny falls machine)  30p            £8

D – non-money prize (crane grab machine)  £1       £50 

D – money prize (other than a coin pusher or penny falls 
machine)  10p     £5

D – combined money and non-money prize (other than a coin 
pusher or penny falls machine)  10p      £8 (of which no more 
than £5 may be a money prize)

D – combined money and non-money prize (coin pusher or penny 
falls machine)  20P        £20 (of which no more than £10 may be 
a money prize).

*with the option of a maximum £20,000 linked progressive 
jackpot on a premises basis only.

Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities 

Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 5th  edition 
dated September 2015

Incidental Non 
Commercial Lottery 

A lottery promoted wholly for purposes other than private 
gain, and which are incidental to non-commercial events 
(commonly charity fund raising events, lottery held at a 
school fete or at a social event such as a dinner dance).

Interested Party A person who: 

Lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely affected 
by the authorised activities 

 Has business interests that might be affected by the 
authorised activities 

 Represents persons in either of the above groups 

Comment [AA1]:  Travelling fairs, 
unlicensed (permit) Family entertainment 
centres

Comment [AA2]:  Subject to deregulation 
(Legislative Reform (Exempt Lotteries) 
Order 2016) due to come into force on 6 
April 2016

Page 46



4

Large Lottery Where the total value of tickets in any one lottery exceeds 
£20,000 OR tickets in separate lotteries in one calendar 
year exceeds £250,000. This requires an Operating 
Licence. 

Licensed Lottery Large society lotteries and lotteries run for the benefit of 
local authorities which will be regulated by the Gambling 
Commission. Operating Licences will be required. 

Live Gaming Gambling on a live game as it happens. 

Lottery An arrangement which satisfies the statutory description of 
either a simple lottery or a complex lottery in Section 14 of 
the Act.

Lottery Tickets Tickets that must:

 Identify the promoting society;

 State the price of the ticket, which must be the same 
for all tickets;

 State the name and address of the member of the 
Society who is designated as having responsibility 
for the Society for the promotion of the lottery or, if 
there is one, the External Lottery Manager; and

 State the date of the draw, or enable the date of the 
draw to be determined.

Mandatory Conditions Conditions that must be attached to a licence. This may 
apply to all Premises Licences, to a class of Premises 
Licence or licences for specified circumstances. 

Page 47



5

Members Club A club that must 

 have at least 25 members 
 be established and conducted ‘wholly or mainly’ for 

purposes other than gaming 
 be permanent in nature 
 not established to make commercial profit 
 controlled by its members equally. 

Non-commercial event An event where all the money raised at the event, including 
entrance fees, goes entirely to purposes that are not for 
private gain. 

Non Commercial 
Society 

A society established and conducted: 

 for charitable purposes 
 for the purpose of enabling participation in, or of 

supporting, sport athletics or a cultural activity; or 
 for any other non-commercial purpose other than 

that of private gain 

Occasional Use Notice Betting may be permitted on a ‘track’ without the need for a 
full Premises Licence. 

Operating Licences Licence to permit individuals and companies to provide 
facilities for certain types of gambling. They may authorise 
remote or non-remote gambling. 

Permits Authorisation to provide a gambling facility where the 
stakes and prizes are very low or gambling is not the main 
function of the premises. 

Personal Licence Formal authorisation to individuals who control facilities for 
gambling or are able to influence the outcome of gambling. 

Page 48



6

These cannot be held by companies.

Premises Defined as ‘any place’. It is for the Licensing Authority to 
decide whether different parts of a building can be properly 
regarded as being separate premises. 

Premises Licence Licence to authorise the provision of gaming facilities on 
casino premises, bingo premises, betting premises, 
including tracks, adult gaming centres and family 
entertainment centres 

Private Lotteries 3 Types of Private Lotteries: 

 Private Society Lotteries – tickets may only be sold 
to members of the Society or persons who are on 
the premises of the Society 

 Work Lotteries – the promoters and purchasers of 
tickets must all work on a single set of work 
premises 

 Residents’ Lotteries – promoted by, and tickets may 
only be sold to, people who live at the same set of 
premises; 

Prize Gaming Where the nature and size of the prize is not determined by 
the number of people playing or the amount paid for or 
raised by the gaming. The prizes will be determined by the 
operator before play commences. 

Prize Gaming Permit A permit to authorise the provision of facilities for gaming 
with prizes on specific premises. 

Provisional Statement Where an applicant can make an application to the 
Licensing Authority in respect of premises that he: 

 Expects to be constructed 

Page 49



7

 Expects to be altered 
 Expects to acquire a right to occupy. 

Relevant 
Representations 

Representations that relate to the Gambling Licensing 
Objectives, or that raise issues under the Licensing Policy 
or the Gambling Commission’s Guidance or Codes of 
Practice. 

Simple Lottery An arrangement where: 

 Persons are required to pay to participate in the 
arrangement 

 In the course of the arrangement, one or more 
prizes are allocated to one or more members of a 
class; and 

 The prizes are allocated by a process which relies 
wholly on chance. 

Small Lottery Where the total value of tickets in a single lottery is 
£20,000 or less and the aggregate value of the tickets in a 
calendar year is £250,000 or less. 

Small Society Lottery A lottery promoted on behalf of a non-commercial society, 
i.e. lotteries intended to raise funds for good causes. 

Society The society or any separate branch of such a society, on 
whose behalf a lottery is to be promoted. 

Statement of 
Principles 

Matters taken into account when considering an applicant’s 
suitability for applications for FEC Permits and prize 
gaming permits.

Page 50



8

Temporary Use Notice To allow the use of premises for gambling where there is 
no premises licence but where a gambling operator wishes 
to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for 
gambling. 

Track Sites where races or other sporting events take place e.g. 
horse racing, dog racing or any other premises on any part 
of which a race or other sporting event takes place or is 
intended to take place. 

Travelling Fair A fair that ‘wholly or principally’ provides amusements and 
must be on a site used for fairs for no more than 27 days 
per calendar year. 

Virtual Betting Machine that takes bets on virtual races, i.e. mages 
generated by computer to resemble races or other events. 

Vulnerable Persons No set definition, but likely to mean groups to include 
people who:-

 Gamble more than they want to;

 Gamble beyond their means;

 Who may not be able to make informed or balanced 
decisions about gambling due to a mental 
impairment, alcohol or drugs.

Young Person An individual who is not a child but who is less than 18 
years old. 

Page 51



9

APPENDIX B

Gambling Act 2005 Responsible Authorities

Licensing Authority

The Licensing Authority Thurrock Council
Civic Offices
New Road
Grays
Essex
RM17 6SL

Responsible Authorities

Essex Police Licensing Unit
Grays Police Station
Brooke Road
Grays
Essex RM17 5BX

The Fire and Rescue Authority Essex Fire Authority
Thurrock & Brentwood Command
Fire Station
Hogg Lane
Grays
Essex RM17 5QS

The Local Planning Authority Development Control Division
Thurrock Council
Civic Offices
New Road
Grays
Essex RM17 6SL

The Local Authority with functions 
related to prevention of risk of 
pollution of the environment

Environmental Health Team
Public Protection
Thurrock Council
Civic Offices
New Road
Grays
Essex RM17 6SL

Page 52



10

The body designated by the 
Licensing Authority as being 
competent to advise on the 
Authority about protection of 
children from harm

Children, Education and Families
Thurrock Council
Civic Offices
New Road
Grays
Essex RM17 6SL

The Gambling Commission Victoria Square House
Victoria Square
Birmingham
B2 4BP

HM Revenue and Customs The Proper Officer
HMRC Banking
St Mungos Road
Cumbernauld
Glasgow
G70 5WY

Page 53



11

APPLICATION PROCESS          Appendix C

This guidance covers those aspects that are the responsibility of the Licensing 
Authority only; guidance on aspects dealt with by the Gambling Commission 
can be obtained via the following link: - www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Premises licences
A premise’s licence is required for any premises where gambling activity is carried out 
of a type requiring personal and operator’s licences to have been issued by the 
Gambling Commission.
An application may only be made by persons having the right to occupy the premises 
and who have, or have applied for, an operating licence allowing the proposed 
activities to be carried out. The premise’s licence cannot be granted until the 
necessary operator’s licence has been issued.    
Premise’s licences are issued by the Licensing Authority and are required for casinos, 
bingo premises, betting premises (including tracks and premises used by betting 
intermediaries) adult gaming centres and family entertainment centres providing 
category C gaming machines.
A licence is restricted to one premise only.  However one set of premises may have 
separate licences issued in respect of different parts of the building.    
Licensing authorities are obliged to grant an application for a premise’s licence, 
provided the application is made in accordance with the Act, the Gambling 
Commission’s guidance and the Licensing Authority’s Statement of Licensing 
Principles.  Licence will be subject of mandatory and default conditions applied by 
regulations issued under the Act.   
Premise’s licences are valid indefinitely from the date of grant unless previously 
surrendered, lapsed, renewed or cancelled.  An annual charge is payable to the 
licensing authority.

Bingo, Betting, Arcades (Adult gaming centres & Licensed family entertainment 
centres) 
Applicants wishing to commence operating on or after 1 September 2007 may apply 
from 1 January 2007 to the Gambling Commission for an operator’s licence and from 
31 January 2007 to the Licensing Authority for a premise’s licence.  
Tracks
An operator’s licence is not required from the Gambling Commission to operate a 
track but a premise’s licence from the Licensing Authority is required.  A number of 
premise’s licences may be granted for one track, provided each is for a different part 
of the track. 
Betting is usually divided into on-course, off-course and pool betting, the provision of 
which requires operators to hold either a general betting operator’s licence or a pool 
betting operating licence from the Commission.

Page 54

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


12

Pool betting on tracks may only be offered by the Tote (in relation to horse-tracks) and 
by the premise’s licence-holder (in relation to dog-tracks).  Pool betting may not be 
provided elsewhere. 
Gaming machines, consisting of a maximum of 4 machines of categories B2 – D, may 
be operated at a track by the premise’s licence-holder provided they hold a pool 
betting operator’s licence (for siting and other special considerations in respect of 
gaming machines at tracks, see ‘the Gambling Commission’s guidance’ at 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk). 
Betting machines may also be operated at tracks (see ‘Betting machines’). 
The licensing process is the same as for other premises described above.
Betting machines
Betting machines are used for accepting bets on live events such as racing, in place 
of making bets at a counter, e.g. in a betting shop or on a track.  These machines are 
not classed as gaming machines.  The Licensing Authority may impose a limit on the 
number of betting machines that may be used in conjunction with a premise’s licence. 
Gaming machine supply & repair
These activities require operator’s licences to be issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  For advice on applying for licences from the Commission, see their 
website at www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk). 
Gaming machines in licensed premises
Premises licences issued under the Gambling Act 2005 automatically authorise the 
provision of gaming machines, according to the type of premises and gambling 
activities permitted (but see also ‘Tracks’).  
The Gambling Act 2005 introduces new classes of gaming machines, as shown in 
figure 1 below.  The category and number of machines that may be operated under a 
premise’s licence are shown in figure 2 below.
Fig. 1
Category of machine Maximum Stake

£
Maximum Prize

£

A Unlimited Unlimited

B1 £5 £10000*

B2 £100 £500

B3 £2 £500

  B3A £2 £500

B4 £2 £400

C £1 £100

D - non-money prize (other than a 
crane grab machine or coin 

pusher or penny falls machine)

30p £8

Page 55

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/
http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


13

D – non-money prize (crane grab 
machine)

£1 £50

D – Money prize (other than a coin 
pusher or penny falls machine)

10p £5

D- combined money and non-
money prize (other than a coin 
pusher or penny falls machine)
  D – combined money can non-

money prize (coin pusher or 
penny falls machine)

10p

20p

£8 (of which no more 
than £5 may be a money 

prize)
£20 (of which no more 

than £10 may be money 
prize)

* with the option of a maximum £20,000 linked progressive jackpot on a premises 
basis only.

Fig. 2

Type of Authorisation Machine Categories Permitted
Premise Type A B1 B2 B3

B3A
B4 C D

Regional casino 
(table/ machine ratio 
of 25-1 up to 
maximum)

Maximum of 1250 machines (subject to a machine/table 
ratio).  Any combination of machines in categories A to D 
(except for B3A machines).

Large casino (table/ 
machine ratio of 5-1 
up to maximum)

 
X

Maximum of 150 machines (subject to a machine/table 
ratio).  Any combination of machines in categories B to 
D (except for B3A machines).

Small casino (table/ 
machine ratio of 2-1 
up to maximum)

 
X

Maximum of 80 machines (subject to a machine/table 
ratio).   Any combination of machines in categories B to 
D (except for B3A machines)

Converted Casino 
Premises Licence 
(Pre-2005 Act 
Casinos)

 
X

Maximum of 20 machines (no machine/table ratio).  
Any combination of machines in categories B to D or C 
or D machines instead (except for B3A machines).

Betting premises 
(other)

 
X

 
X

Maximum of 4 machines.  Any combination of 
machines in categories B2 to D (except for B3A 
machines).

Betting premises 
(Track)

X X As Betting (other), but only if the licence-holder 
also holds a Pool Betting Operating Licence.

Page 56



14

Bingo Premises  
X

 
X

 
X

20% of total 
gaming 
machines#

 

Unlimited

Adult gaming centre  
X

 
X

 
X

20% of total 
gaming machines 
#

Unlimited

Family Entertainment 
Centre Premises 
Licence

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

Unlimited

Family Entertainment 
Centre Gaming 
Machine Permit

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

Unlimited

Club Gaming Permit or 
Club Machine Permit

 
X

 
X

 
X

Maximum of 3 machines
Members clubs – from Cat. B3a/B4/C/D
Commercial clubs – from Cat. B4/C/D

Alcohol-licensed 
premises
Automatic entitlement

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

1 or 2 machines of 
category C or D 
LA must be notified

Alcohol licensed 
premises Gaming 
Machine Permit

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

As allowed by permit

Travelling fair
(no authorisation 
required)

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

 
X

Unlimited

 A B1 B2 B3
B3A

B4 C D

X = category of machines not permitted on this type of premises)

# AGC/Bingo premises in existence before 13 July 2011 or granted between 
13/07/2011 and 01/04/2014 may provide 4 or 8 (respectively) category B machines, or 
up to 20% of the total number if this is greater.

Minimum age of 18 years to use Category A, B and C machines.  No age limit on 
Category D machines.

Page 57



15

Temporary Use Notices (TUNs)

A TUN may only be issued by a person or company holding an operating licence 
relevant to the proposed temporary use of the premises and may be issued in respect 
of a ‘set of premises’ for a maximum of 21 days in any 12- month period.  (NB. A TUN 
may not be issued in respect of a vehicle).
A ‘set of premises’ is the subject of a TUN if any part of the premises is the subject of 
the notice.  This prevents one large premise from having a TUN in effect for more than 
21 days per year by giving a notice in respect to different parts.  
In considering whether a place falls within the definition of "a set of premises", the 
Licensing Authorities will consider, amongst other things, the ownership / occupation 
and control of the premises.
The Licensing Authority should generally aim to permit gambling activities under a 
TUN but will object to notices where it appears that their effect would be to permit 
regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of premises.
Issue
Not less than 3 months and 1 day prior to the day on which the gambling event is to 
take place, a TUN must be given to: -

 the Licensing Authority,

 the police,

 HM Commissioners for Revenue and Customs, and, if applicable,

 any other licensing authority in whose area the premises are situated.
The notice must include details of: -

 the date the notice is given, 

 the gambling activity to be carried on,

 the premises where it will take place,

 the dates and times it will take place,

 any periods during the preceding 12 months that a TUN has had effect for the 
same premises, and

 any other information prescribed by regulations.
If there are no objections, the notice will be endorsed by the Licensing Authority and 
returned to the issuer for display upon the premises at the time the activity takes 
place.
Objections
Having regard to the licensing objectives, those authorities upon whom the TUN is 
served may make objections within 14 days of the date of the notice to the gambling 
activity taking place.  Objections must be made to the Licensing Authority and TUN 
issuer.
Modifications to the notice may be suggested by those objecting to it.  If accepted by 
the issuer, a new notice must be issued.  It should be noted that the 3 month, 1 day 

Page 58



16

time limit and a new fee will not apply to the new notice, nor may the original 
objector/s object to the new notice.   
A hearing must be held before the Licensing Sub-Committee to hear representations 
from all parties, unless agreement is reached that a hearing is unnecessary, e.g. by 
modification of the notice, within 6 weeks of the date of the notice. 
Following a hearing the Licensing Authority must issue a counter notice setting out 
whether or not the TUN will have effect, any limitations to the activities permitted, the 
time period when activities may take place and any conditions that are imposed. 

Occasional Use Notices (OUNs)

Occasional Use Notices may only be issued in relation to tracks that are used on eight 
days or less in a calendar year.  
A track can be any part of a premise on which a race or other sporting event takes 
place or is intended to take place.  Tracks need not be a permanent fixture.
OUNs are intended to permit licensed betting operators who have the appropriate 
permission of the Gambling Commission to use tracks for short periods for conducting 
betting.  An OUN dispenses with the need for a betting premises licence for the track.
Issue

The notice may be issued by the person responsible for the administration of events 
on the track or the occupier of the track.
The notice must be served on the Licensing Authority and a copy on the Chief Officer 
of Police.

Objections

Generally objections may not be made to the issue of an OUN, except the Licensing 
Authority must issue a counter notice where the effect of the OUN would result in 
betting facilities being made available for more than 8 days in a calendar year. 

Page 59



17

  

PREMISES WHERE AN OPERATOR’S LICENCE HAS BEEN GRANTED TO 
OPERATE A CASINO, BINGO PREMISES, BETTING PREMISES, ADULT GAMING 

CENTRE OR LICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE

© DFS 2004

PREMISES LICENCES

1. Attach required documentation
2. Pay prescribed fee

1. Licence lasts indefinitely unless 
surrendered, revoked, etc.

2. Annual charge payable to 
licensing authority 

1. Annual charge payable to Licensing Authority

Page 60



18

GAMING PERMITS
Certain types of gambling are authorised by permits issued by the Licensing Authority.  
The permits generally authorise low stake gambling for small prizes by: -

 Gaming machines in alcohol-licensed premises, member’s clubs, unlicensed family 
entertainment centres (FEC’s) and certain other premises, e.g. taxi offices (see 
’Other premises’ below); 

 Equal chance gaming, games of chance and gaming machines in member’s clubs; 
and 

 Prize gaming, e.g. at travelling fairs. 

GAMING MACHINES 

The Gambling Act 2005 introduces new classes of gaming machines that may be 
operated under a permit, as shown in figure 3 below.  

Fig. 3
Category of machine Maximum Stake

£
Maximum Prize

£
B3A 2 500

B4 2 400

C 1 100

D - non-money prize (other 
than a crane grab machine 
or a coin pusher or penny 

falls machine)

30p 8

D – non-money prize (crane 
grab machine)

1 50

D – non-money prize (other 
than a coin pusher or penny 

falls machine)

10p 5

D – combined money and 
non-money prize (other 

than a coin pusher or penny 
falls machine)

10p £8 (of which no more than £5 may be 
a money prize)

D – combined money and 
non-Money prize (coin 
pusher or penny falls 

machine)

20p £20 (of which no more than £10 may 
be a money prize)

The category and number of machines that may be operated under a premise’s 
licence are shown in figure 2 above.

Page 61



19

Fig. 4

Machine category
Premises Type A B1 B2 B3 B3A B4 C D
Clubs or miners’ 
welfare institutes 
with permits

Maximum of 3 machines
Members clubs – from Cat. B3a/B4/C/D
Commercial clubs – from Cat. B4/C/D

Alcohol Licensed 
Premises 
Automatic 
Entitlement

1-2 machines
LA must be notified

Alcohol Licensed 
Premises Gaming 
Machine Permit

As allowed by permit

Family 
entertainment 
centre (with permit)

Unlimited

Travelling fair Unlimited

ALCOHOL LICENSED PREMISES 
Certain types of gambling may take place on alcohol-licensed premises under the 
Licensing Act 2003 without any authorisation being required.  Generally these consist 
of the playing of cribbage, dominoes and other games for low stakes.
Premises holding a premise’s licence may be authorised to operate machines of class 
C or D provided the premise’s licence authorises the sale and supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises without it being a condition that the sale and supply of 
alcohol has to be accompanied by food.
The following paragraphs apply only to those premises.

AUTOMATIC ENTITLEMENT 
The Gambling Act 2005 gives an automatic entitlement for the holder of a premise’s 
licence under the 2003 Act to provide up to two gaming machines on their premises.  
An application for a permit is not required but premise’s licence-holders must notify 
their Licensing Authority in writing of their intention to provide the machines, and pay 
the prescribed fee.
The entitlement may be withdrawn if provision of the machines is not reasonably 
consistent with the pursuit of the licensing objectives; gaming has taken place on the 
premises that has breached a condition of the Act, e.g. they do not comply with siting 
and operation requirements; the premises are mainly used for gaming; or where an 
offence under the Gambling Act 2005 has been committed on the premises.  
The Licensing Authority may not exercise their powers to remove the entitlement 
without first giving the permit-holder the opportunity to make written or oral 
representations or both.  A hearing will be held before the Licensing Sub-Committee 
for this purpose, unless all parties agree that it is unnecessary.

Page 62



20

NEW PERMITS 
Where the holder of a premise’s licence wishes to provide more than two gaming 
machines, an application for a permit must be made to the Licensing Authority with 
the prescribed fee.  There is no restriction on the number of machines that may be 
applied for and applications to vary the number of machines may be made at any 
time. 
In determining an application for an increase in the number of machines, the 
Licensing Authority will consider: -

 the size of the premises;

 the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young 
persons or by vulnerable persons;

 any documentary evidence, e.g. supporting statistical evidence providing details of 
usage, etc.;

 each application on its own merits;

 the Codes of Practice or Guidance issued under the Gambling Act 2005.
Where the Authority grants the application, a permit will be issued for the number of 
machines authorised, which will include the automatic entitlement of 2 machines.  
Where the Authority intend to refuse an application, or grant it for a different number 
or category of machines to that requested, the applicant will be given the opportunity 
to make written or oral representations or both.  A hearing will be held before the 
Licensing Sub-Committee for this purpose, unless all parties agree that it is 
unnecessary
Where the premise’s licence is transferred, the gaming machine permit must also be 
transferred or it will lapse.  In all other cases the permit will last indefinitely, unless 
surrendered or revoked.  
Although the permit will not need to be renewed, an annual charge will have to be 
paid to the Licensing Authority. 
A permit issued under section 34 that is in force on 1 September 2007 will continue to 
have effect until its natural expiry date.     
Where a ‘section 34 permit’ for 2 or less machines expires after 1 September 2007, at 
least 2 months before its expiry the premise’s licence-holder must notify the Licensing 
Authority in writing of their intention to provide 2 (or less) machines and pay the 
prescribed fee. 

Where a ‘section 34 permit’ for more than 2 machines expires after 1 September 
2007, the premise’s licence-holder must apply for a new permit at least 2 months 
before its expiry and pay the prescribed fee.  A new permit must be issued for the 
same number of machines the previous permit authorised.

Page 63



21

MEMBERS’ CLUBS 
The Gambling Act 2005 permits a member’s club holding a club premise’s certificate 
issued under the Licensing Act 2003, or miner’s welfare institute, to hold a club 
gaming permit allowing participation in equal chance gaming or playing games of 
chance (see ‘Appendix A’ for definitions of ‘equal chance gaming’ and ‘games of 
chance’).  In addition they may operate a maximum of 3 machines of either class B3A, 
B4, C or D.  
The Act also permits a member’s club holding a club premise’s certificate or a 
commercial club holding a premise’s licence under the Licensing Act 2003 to operate 
a maximum of 3 machines of either class B4, C or D under a club machine permit.
New permits
Applications for a permit for premises already holding a club premise’s certificate are 
subject to a ‘fast-track’ procedure that prevents the making of objections, and restricts 
the ability of the Licensing Authority to refuse the application.
An application under this process may be refused if the club is established primarily 
for gaming (other than that permitted); if in addition to the permitted gaming, facilities 
are provided for other gaming; or that a club machine permit issued to the applicant 
within the preceding 10 years has been cancelled.
An application and payment of the prescribed fee is required.  A permit has effect for 
10 years unless surrendered or revoked. 
Applications for a permit for premises not holding a club premise’s certificate e.g. a 
commercial member’s club with a premise’s licence, may be refused by the Licensing 
Authority on the grounds that the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a 
member’s or commercial club; the premises are used wholly or mainly by children and 
/ or young persons; an offence under the Act or breach of a permit has been 
committed by the applicant while providing gaming facilities; a permit held by the 
applicant has been cancelled in the previous 10 years; an objection has been made 
by the police or Gambling Commission. 
Permits may be varied at any time to meet changing circumstances, other than an 
increase above 3 to the number of machines.  Licensing authorities may only refuse a 
variation if, on consideration of the proposed variation as a new application, they 
would refuse a permit.
A permit will lapse if the holder no longer qualifies as a member’s club or no longer 
qualifies under the ‘fast-track’ system, or the permit is surrendered.   A permit may be 
cancelled if the premises are used wholly or mainly by children and / or young 
persons or where an offence under the Act or breach of a permit condition has been 
committed by the applicant in the course of gaming activities.
Permits are valid for 10 years from the date of grant unless previously 
surrendered, lapsed, renewed or cancelled.  An annual charge is payable to the 
licensing authority.
A registration that is in force on 1 September 2007 will continue to have effect until it’s 
natural expiry date.  Upon expiry a club will be entitled to apply for either a club 
gaming permit or club machine permit irrespective of the type of registration 
previously held.

Page 64



22

An application for a new club machine permit must be made at least 2 months before 
the existing registration expires together with the prescribed fee.

OTHEROTHER  PREMISESPREMISES
Premises such as taxi offices, take-away restaurants, cafes etc are prohibited from 
obtaining a gaming machine permit under the Gambling Act 2005 and will be unable 
to operate gaming machines of any kind.

UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES 

The Licensing Authority may grant an application for a permit for category D gaming 
machines in an unlicensed family entertainment centre (FEC) provided it is satisfied 
the premises will be used as an unlicensed FEC and that the Chief Officer of Police 
has been consulted.  There are no limits to the number of machines that may be 
applied for in an unlicensed FEC.   
The Authority will apply its Statement of Principles in consideration of an application, 
e.g. requiring an applicant to demonstrate they have no relevant convictions, that they 
have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes permissible and that staff 
have a similar understanding. 
An application for a permit will have to be accompanied by plans of the premises and 
a current certificate issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)  in respect 
of the applicant, i.e. a certificate issued within the previous 28-day period.  The 
requirement in respect of the DBS certificate will be satisfied, where the applicant is a 
person who is a sole proprietor of the premises, by submission of a certificate in 
respect of that person or, where an applicant is a company or partnership, by 
submission of a certificate in respect of the person normally having day-to-day control 
of the premises.  
The Authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds 
that an authorised local authority officer has been refused access to the premises 
without reasonable excuse, or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with 
the pursuit of the licensing objectives. 
Where the Authority intends to refuse an application, the applicant will be given the 
opportunity to make written or oral representations or both.  A hearing will be held 
before the Licensing Sub-Committee for this purpose, unless all parties agree that it is 
unnecessary.
In determining an application, the Licensing Authority need not have regard to the 
licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission guidance.
Permits will last for 10 years unless it ceases to have effect because it is surrendered, 
it lapses or it is renewed.  There is no annual charge payable to the Licensing 
Authority.
Unlicensed FECs may also offer equal chance gaming under the authority of their 
gaming machine permit.   
New permits

Page 65



23

Applications for new permits may be made to the Licensing Authority 
PRIZE GAMING 

Prize gaming may be carried on in premises under a permit issued by the Licensing 
Authority.  A prize gaming permit will not authorise the use of gaming machines.  
The Authority may apply its Statement of Principles in consideration of an application, 
e.g. requiring an applicant to demonstrate they have no relevant convictions, that they 
have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes permissible and that staff 
have a similar understanding.
The Authority may refuse an application for renewal of a permit only on the grounds 
that an authorised local authority officer has been refused access to the premises 
without reasonable excuse, or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with 
the pursuit of the licensing objectives. 
An application for a permit will have to be accompanied by plans of the premises and 
a current certificate issued by the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) in respect 
of the applicant, i.e. a certificate issued within the previous 28-day period.  The 
requirement in respect of the DBS certificate will be satisfied, where the applicant is a 
person who is a sole proprietor of the premises, by submission of a certificate in 
respect of that person or, where an applicant is a company or partnership, by 
submission of a certificate in respect of the person normally having day-to-day control 
of the premises.  
Where the Authority intends to refuse an application, the applicant must be given the 
opportunity to make written or oral representations or both.  A hearing will be held 
before the Licensing Sub-Committee for this purpose, unless all parties agree that it is 
unnecessary.
In determining an application, the Licensing Authority need not have regard to the 
licensing objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission guidance.
A prize gaming permit will last for 10 years unless it ceases to have effect or is 
renewed.  There is no annual charge payable to the Licensing Authority.

New permits

Applications for new permits may be made to the Licensing Authority.

Prize gaming without a permit

Prize gaming without a Prize Gaming Permit may be carried on in any premises with a 
Premise’s Licence issued under the Gambling Act 2005, except that casinos may not 
offer prize bingo.  
Unlicensed FECs may also offer equal chance gaming only, under the authority of 
their gaming machine permit.   
Travelling fairs may also offer equal chance gaming only without a permit provided the 
facilities for gaming are ancillary amusements to the fair.

Page 66



24

TRAVELLING FAIRS 

Travelling fairs do not require a permit to provide gaming machines but must comply 
with codes of practice on how they are operated.  
Travelling fairs may provide an unlimited number of category D machines and prize 
gaming in the form of equal chance gaming provided that facilities for gambling 
amount to no more than ancillary amusement at the fair.

Page 67



25

  

PREMISES WHERE THE LICENCE PERMITS THE SALE OF ALCOHOL FOR 
CONSUMPTION ON THE PREMISES AND THE SALE IS NOT CONDITIONAL UPON 

FOOD BEING SOLD MAY HAVE GAMING MACHINES OF CLASS C OR D

© DFS 2004

ALCOHOL LICENSED PREMISES

UP TO 2 MACHINES

1. Automatic entitlement to 2 
machines   

2. Notify Licensing Authority in 
writing of proposed intention to 
operate machines.

3. Pay prescribed fee

MORE THAN 2 MACHINES 
1. Apply to Licensing Authority 
2. Attach statistical justification 

showing ‘need’
3. Attach plan of premises 

showing location of machines  
4. Pay prescribed fee

1. Permit has effect from date of 
grant unless surrendered or 
cancelled

2. Annual charge to be paid to 
Licensing Authority

BUT
1. Permit holder must be given 21 days notice of the intention to withdraw or cancel
2. Hearing must be held if permit holder requests one
3. Withdrawal or cancellation has no effect until 21 days has elapsed from notice being 

served where no hearing is requested or 21 days following a hearing or appeal.

1. Licensing authority can withdraw entitlement for 2 machines where their provision is not 
consistent with licensing objectives; gaming has taken place in breach of a condition; 
premises are used mainly for gaming; an offence under the Act has been committed.

2. Licensing authority can cancel a permit where the premises are used wholly, or mainly, by 
children or young persons or an offence under the Act has been committed.

Page 68



26

  

MAXIMUM OF 3 CATEGORY B3A, B4, C OR D MACHINES

Applications for new permits 
and renewals must be made to 

Licensing Authority

ATTACH TO APPLICATION
1. Club Premises Certificate 

(for fast track applications)
2. Rules of club (if not CPC) 
3. Plan of premises showing 

location of machines
4. Prescribed fee

© DFS 2004

MEMBERS’ CLUBS

1. Copy of application and 
accompanying documents 
to police & Gambling 
Commission 

2. Objections may be made 
(except to ‘fast-track’ 
applications)

3. Permit lasts 10 years

Application for grant may be refused if: -
1. Applicant does not qualify as a member’s or commercial club or miner’s welfare 

institute. 
2. The premises are used wholly or mainly by children or young persons. 
3. An offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed while providing 

gaming facilities. 
4. A permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in previous 10 years. 
5. An objection has been made by police or Commission.

Application for renewal must be sent to licensing authority with fee between 3 and 6 
weeks before permit expires and may only be refused on the same grounds as for 
original grant.
Duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal application is pending or 
where an appeal against a refusal to renew is outstandingPage 69



27

  

PERMIT MAY BE ISSUED FOR PREMISES WHOSE PRIMARY USE IS AS AN 
UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE TO HAVE AN UNLIMITED NUMBER 

OF GAMING MACHINES OF CLASS D

© DFS 2004

UNLICENSED FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE

NEW PERMIT TO OPERATE 
AFTER 1 SEPTEMBER 2007

1. Attach information required by 
Statement of Principles

2. Attach plan of premises 
showing location of machines  

3. Consult Chief of Police
4. Pay prescribed fee

Application for grant may be refused if the grant would not be reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives, e.g. convictions making the applicant unsuitable, the location and type of 
premises being unsuitable, issues concerning disorder. 

Application for renewal must be sent to licensing authority with fee between 2 and 6 months 
before permit expires and may only be refused if an authorised officer has been refused access 
to the premises w/o reasonable excuse, or renewal would not be reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives.  Duration of the permit will not be curtailed while a renewal application is 
pending or where an appeal against a refusal to renew is outstanding.

Permits will lapse if: -
1. Licensing authority notifies holder premises are no longer being used as an unlicensed FEC
2. Holder no longer occupies premises
3. Holder dies, becomes mentally incapacitate, bankrupt or, in case of a company, ceases to 

exist or goes into liquidation
4. Court orders holder to forfeit permit
5. Holder surrenders or fails to renew it.

Page 70



28

  

PRIZE GAMING PERMITS MAY ONLY BE ISSUED IN RESPECT OF PREMISES FOR 
WHICH THERE IS NO PREMISES LICENCE OR CLUB GAMING PERMIT ISSUED 

UNDER THE GAMING ACT 2005 

© DFS 2004

PRIZE GAMING PERMIT

1. Attach information required by 
Statement of Principles

2. Attach plans of premises
3. Pay prescribed fee

Application for grant may be refused if the grant would not be reasonably consistent with 
the licensing objectives, e.g. convictions making the applicant unsuitable, the location 
and type of premises being unsuitable, issues concerning disorder. 
Application for renewal must be sent to licensing authority with fee between 2 and 6 
months before permit expires and may only be refused if an authorised officer has been 
refused access to the premises w/o reasonable excuse, or renewal would not be 
reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives.  Duration of the permit will not be 
curtailed while a renewal application is pending or where an appeal against a refusal to 
renew is outstanding.

Permits will lapse if: -
1. Holder no longer occupies premises
2. Holder dies, becomes mentally incapacitate, bankrupt or, in case of a company, 

ceases to exist or goes into liquidation
3. Court orders holder to forfeit permit
4. Holder surrenders or fails to renew it

Page 71



29

LOTTERIES

A lottery is unlawful unless it is run in accordance with an operating licence 
issued by the Gambling Commission, or it is exempt.  This advice covers only 
those categories of lottery that are exempt.   For more information on the 
licensing requirements for lotteries, see the Gambling Commission’s website on 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk 
The Gambling Act 2005 defines 4 categories of lottery that are exempt from needing 
an operating licence: -  

 Incidental non-commercial lottery 

 Private lottery 

 Customer lottery

 Small society lottery  
Only a small society lottery is required to be registered with the Licensing Authority.
Applications must be made by the promoting society to the licensing authority for the 
area in which the principal address of the society is located.  The Licensing Authority 
must record details of the society in a register and notify the applicant and the 
Gambling Commission of the registration.
The Licensing Authority will require applicants to declare: -

 the purposes for which the society is established, 

 that they represent a bona fide non-commercial society, and

 that they have no relevant convictions. 
The Licensing Authority may refuse an application if: -

 they consider the applicant is not a non-commercial society, 

 any person who will or may be connected with the promotion of the lottery has 
been convicted of a relevant offence, or

 information provided in or with an application is false or misleading. 
An application shall be refused if an operating licence held or applied for by the 
applicant has been revoked or refused in the previous 5 years.
The Licensing Authority may revoke a registration where it believes the grounds exist 
that would permit or require it to refuse an application for registration.
Where the Licensing Authority intend to refuse or revoke the registration application it 
will give the society: -

 details of the reasons,

 evidence upon which it reached the decision, and 

 the opportunity to make written and/or oral representations.  

Page 72

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


30

NEW REGISTRATIONS 

An application for registration with the prescribed fee must be made to the Licensing 
Authority under the Gambling Act 2005.  The registration will be valid indefinitely with 
an annual fee being payable to the Licensing Authority.
Lottery requirements

To ensure the main purposes of the lottery are met: -

 the society must apply a minimum of 20% of the proceeds of the lottery to the 
purposes of the society, 

 no single prize may exceed £25,000, 

 rollovers may be permitted provided every lottery affected is also a small society 
lottery by the same society and the maximum single prize does not exceed 
£25,000, and

 every ticket must cost the same and must be paid for before being entered into the 
draw.

Returns

No later than 3 months after making the draw (or in the case of a rollover, the last 
draw), a return must be sent to the Licensing Authority that: -

 has been signed by 2 members of the society over 18 years of age who are 
appointed for the purpose in writing by the society, or its governing body, if it has 
one,

 is accompanied by a copy of the member’s letter of appointment, 
and include the following details: -

 the dates when tickets were available for sale, 

 the dates of any draw and value of prizes, including any rollover, 

 the proceeds raised,

 the amounts deducted for prizes and expenses incurred in organising the lottery,

 the amount applied or to be applied to the purposes of the promoting society, and

 whether any expenses incurred in connection with the lottery were paid for other 
than from the proceeds of the lottery and, if so, the amount and the source/s from 
which they were paid.

EXTERNAL LOTTERY MANAGERS
External lottery managers require operator’s licences issued by the Gambling 
Commission.  For more information, see the Gambling Commission’s website on 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Page 73

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


31

PROMOTED BY A NON-COMMERCIAL SOCIETY ESTABLISHED FOR CHARITABLE 
PURPOSES; FOR PURPOSE OF ENABLING PARTICIPATION IN OR OF 

SUPPORTING SPORT, ATHLETICS OR CULTURAL ACTIVITY; OR FOR OTHER NON 
–COMMERCIAL PURPOSES OTHER THAN PRIVATE GAIN

© DFS 2004

SMALL SOCIETY LOTTERIES

REGISTRATION TO OPERATE 
AFTER 1 SEPTEMBER 2007

1. Attach information required: -
(a) Purpose for which society 

established
(b) Confirm bona fides of 

society as non-commercial
(c) Declare convictions, if any

2. Pay prescribed fee
3. Registration valid for life, 

annual fee payable to licensing 
authority

Registration may be refused if: -
1. Society is not considered to be non-commercial 
2. Any person connected with promotion of lottery has been convicted of relevant offence , or 
3. Information provided in application is false/misleading 
4. Registration must be refused if an operating licence held by or applied for by the applicant has 

been revoked or refused in the previous 5 years
5. Registration may be revoked where grounds exist for an application for registration to be 

refused. 
BUT a registration will not be refused or revoked unless the society has been informed of the 
reasons and the evidence supporting them & been given the opportunity to make representations.

Lottery requirements: -
1. Society must apply minimum 20% of proceeds to purposes of society
2. No single prize to exceed £25000
3. Rollovers permitted provided all lotteries effected are small society lotteries & maximum 

single prize does not exceed £25000
4. Tickets must cost same, be paid for before being entered in draw & include details of society, 

price, name & address of person responsible for promotion of the lottery & date of draw
Returns, which must be made no later than 3 months after draw, must be signed by 2 
members and include details of: -

5. Dates tickets were available for sale, dates of draw & value of prizes
6. Proceeds raised, amounts deducted for prizes, expenses incurred in organising lottery & 

where any were paid for other than from proceeds of lottery, the amount and source
7. Amount to be applied to purposes of the promoting society.

Page 74



32

Appendix E

ADVICE FOR THOSE WHO HAVE DIFFICULTY UNDERSTANDING ENGLISH

THE FOLLOWING WORDING IS TRANSLATED INTO SEVERAL LANGUAGES TO 
ASSIST THOSE WHOSE FIRST LANGUAGE IS NOT ENGLISH.

THE ENCLOSED PAPERS ARE VERY IMPORTANT.  
IF YOU HAVE DIFFICULTY READING OR UNDERSTANDING ENGLISH,
PLEASE CONTACT SOMEONE WHO CAN HELP YOU IMMEDIATELY.

ALBANIAN Letrat e bashkangjitura jane shume te rendesishme.
Nese keni veshtersi per te lexuar ose kuptuar gjuhen angleze 
ju lutemi kontaktoni dikend per te ju ndihmuar menjehere.  

ARABIC

BENGALI

CHINESE

GUJARATI

HINDI

Page 75



33

KURDISH

PUNJABI

TURKISH
İlişikteki kağıtlar çok önemlidir.

İngilizceyi okumakta veya anlamakta zorluk çekiyorsanız size 
derhal yardım edebilecek birisiyle lütfen temas kurunuz.

URDU

Page 76



34

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND DELEGATION OF POWERS          Appendix F

1 In relation to licensing functions the panels will decide all applications against 
which representations have been made and not withdrawn.  These are: 

(a) (i) Section 18(3) (Determination of Application for Premises Licence 
where representations have been made).

(ii) Section 31(3) (Determination of Application for Provisional 
Statement where representations have been made).

(iii) Section 35(3) (Determination of Application for Variation of 
Premises Licence where representations have been made).

(iv) Section 39(3) (Determination of Application to Vary Designated 
Premises Supervisor following police objection).

(v) Section 44(5) (Determination of Application for Transfer of 
Premises Licence following police objection).

(vi) Section 48(3) (Consideration of police objections made to Interim 
Authority Notice).

(vii) Section 72(3) (Determination of Application for Club Premises 
Certificate where representations have been made).

(viii) Section 85(3) (Determination of Application to Vary Club 
Certificate where representations have been made).

(ix) Section 105(2) (Decision to give counter notice following police 
objection to temporary event notice).

(x) Section 120(7) (Determination of Application for Grant of Personal 
Licence following police objection).

(xi) Section 121(6) (Determination of Application for Renewal of 
Personal Licence following police objection).

(xii) Section 124(4) (Revocation of Licence where convictions came to 
light after grant etc.).

(b) Any function under Section 52(2) or (3) (determination of application for 
review of Premises Licence) in a case where relevant representations 
(within the meaning of Section 52(7)) have been made;

(c) Any function under Section 88(2) or (3) (determination of application for 
review of Club Premises Certificate) in a case relevant representations 
(within the meaning of Section 88(7)) have been made; or

Page 77



35

(d) Any function under Section 167(5) (Review following Closure Order) in a 
case where relevant representations (within the meaning of Section 
167(9)) have been made.

2. The Manager of Environmental Health and Community Safety and 
Environmental Health Managers be given delegated responsibility for all other 
functions under the Act.

3. That the Manager of Environmental Health and Community Safety and the 
Environmental Health Managers can following the decision to call a hearing, 
agree to cancel the hearing if all parties agree one is unnecessary.

4. That the Manager of Environmental Health and Community Safety and the 
Environmental Health Managers in conjunction with the Manager of Legal 
Services agree that  a representation is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.

Page 78



36

LIST OF CONSULTEES Appendix G

The following organisations and individuals were consulted as part of the formal 
consultation exercise on the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy:

 All responsible Authorities for the Gambling Act;

 Holders of Amusement with Prizes Permits under the Gaming Act 1968;

 Elected Members of the Thurrock Council;

 All premises in the borough licensed for the sale or supply of alcohol;

 Betting shops, bingo halls licensed under the Gaming Act 1968;

 Businesses known to be supplying gaming machines to premises in the district;

 Religious groups

 Trade Associations including BACTA, the Bingo Association, the Association of 
British Bookmakers Ltd and the British Beer and Pub Association;

 Voluntary and support groups including Gamblers Anonymous, Money Support 
Trust, GamCare and the Citizens Advice Bureau; 

 Licensing Consultants and Legal Advisers in private practice, who requested a 
copy;

 Thurrock Community Safety Partnership.
 
In addition to the above, copies of the draft Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy 
were made available on the Council's website and press releases were arranged.   

Page 79



37

USEFUL CONTACTS          Appendix H

The Gambling Commission maintains a list of useful contacts on organisations 
involved in gambling and their contact details can be found on the Commission’s 
website www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk.  Some of these organisations provide 
codes of practice on their particular interest area.

Page 80

http://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


7 July 2016 ITEM: 6

Licensing Committee
CSE Awareness Training for Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
Drivers
Wards and communities affected: 
All

Key Decision: 
Key

Report of: Paul Adams – Principal Licensing Officer

Accountable Head of Service: Lucy Magill  – Head of Residents Services

Accountable Director Steve Cox -  Corporate Director of Environment and Place

This report is: Public

Executive Summary

This report seeks to make attendance of Thurrock Council’s Child Sexual 
Exploitation Awareness Training, a pre application requirement, which will 
require all licensed drivers to have undertaken the training before they renew 
their licence or before any new drivers are granted with a licence.

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 That the Licensing Committee agrees recommend to Council the 
inclusion of the completion of Thurrock Councils CSE Awareness 
training as part of its pre application requirements.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) is growing concern nationally, with a 
number of high-profile cases being highlighted in the national press 
over recent years, such as Rotherham.

2.2 It has been identified during the investigations and enquiries into cases 
of CSE, such as the Jay Enquiry that “The prominent role of taxi drivers 
in CSE as a ‘common thread’ across England and noted that their 
involvement was evident from an early stage in Rotherham.”

2.3 These findings are not identifying taxi drivers as the perpetrators of 
CSE, but highlights the victims of CSE are often moved about in Taxis, 
often unknowingly buy the taxi driver, and they often unknowingly hold 
important information to help prevent and detect CSE.

Page 81

Agenda Item 6



2.4 As part of an initiative from Thurrock’s MASE (Multi agency sexual 
exploitation) group, a CSE Awareness training course has been 
produced which is specifically aimed at Hackney Carriage/Private Hire 
drivers.

2.5 The training provides taxi drivers with: 

 A definition and understanding of what CSE is,
 How to identify the signs of CSE,
 How taxis could be used in cases of CSE,
 How to report any concerns that drivers may have,
 How to safeguard themselves from safeguarding complaints and 

allegations when transporting children or other vulnerable 
persons.

2.6 The training is being provided free of charge to the drivers, and is being 
delivered from August 2016 by Thurrock Council’s CSE coordinator, 
and a CSE specialist from Essex Police.

2.7 Attendance to the course at the moment is voluntary, and we are 
having a very large and positive take up by the local drivers. 

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1 Thurrock Council currently requires that all applicants for a Hackney 
Carriage/ Private Hire Drivers licence have to meet the following criteria 
or submit the following documentation:

 A fully completed application form.
 An application for an enhanced DBS check via our online 

service, or when requested by completing the DBS form. 
 If a person has ever lived outside the UK for a period of more 

than 4 continuous weeks, they will also need to supply a 
‘Certificate of Good Conduct’ from the relevant embassy.  

 A completed the DVLA DP20 Data Protection Mandate.  This 
mandate enables us to check their DVLA licence online for a 
period of three years.

 A DVLA/EU Driving Licence
 A Valid Passport or birth certificate
 Proof of address from the last 3 months (e.g. utility bill, bank 

statement)
 Proof of National Insurance number
 Passport style photograph
 Fee
 Applicants shall be 21 years old or over at the time of submitting 

their application.

Page 82



 Applicants shall have been in possession of a full valid UK/EU 
driving licence continuously for a minimum of 3 years.

 DVLA Group 2 Medical Standards examination report. This 
should be completed by a GP, preferably your own.

 PATS certificate - All new applicants are required to undergo 
PATS (Passenger Assistant Training Scheme).

 Have passed the relevant Knowledge test.

3.2 It is proposed that the following additional requirement is added to this 
list:

 To undertake the Thurrock Council Child Sexual Exploitation 
awareness training for taxi drivers.

3.3 This will be applied to all new applicants, and any driver seeking to renew 
their licence.

3.4  An e-learning course that follows the content of the delivered training 
package is being developed to allow new applicants to receive the 
appropriate training. This course will be sat at the same time as the 
knowledge test, and will ensure that the training can be delivered after 
the initial courses have run.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 Following the consultation there were no comments received, Policy 
cannot be adopted by the Licensing Committee, and adoption is a Full 
Council Function.

5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

4.1 Informal consultation has been undertaken with representatives of local 
Private Hire Operators, who have reviewed the course content are 
supportive of its delivery to all drivers.

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and 
community impact

6.1 Making this training mandatory for all drivers will contribute to the 
prevention of CSE affecting the local community; this is part of a much 
larger CSE prevention plan for Thurrock.

7. Implications

7.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Laura Last
Senior Finance Officer

Page 83



All additional costs will be recoverable by the license fee.

7.2 Legal

Implications verified by: Chris Pickering
Principal Solicitor - Litigation & 
Employment

This revised policy will have to be referred to Full Council for adoption.

7.3 Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by:  Natalie Warren
Community Development and Equalities 
Manager

 
The introduction of CSE training as a pre application requirement helps 
to protect vulnerable children and young people.

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, 
Sustainability, Crime and Disorder)

None

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their 
location on the Council’s website or identification whether any are 
exempt or protected by copyright):

 None

9. Appendices to the report

 None

Report Author:

Paul Adams
Principal Licensing Officer

Page 84



7 July 2016 ITEM: 7

Licensing Committee

Applications Received

Wards and communities affected: 
All

Key Decision: 
Key

Report of: Paul Adams – Principal Licensing Officer

Accountable Head of Service: Lucy Magill  – Head of Residents Services

Accountable Director Steve Cox -  Corporate Director of Environment and Place

This report is: Public

Executive Summary

This is a summary of applications received under the Licensing Act 2003 and 
Gambling Act 2005 for the period of the 1 January 2016 to 31 May 2016.

1. Recommendation(s)

1.1 To note the contents of the report.

2. Introduction and Background

2.1 Under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005 an application for a 
New/Variation/Minor Variation for a Premises Licence or Club Premises 
Certificate will be granted under officer delegation unless there is relevant 
representation received, from either a Responsible Authority or from Other 
Persons (Interested Party). Where a representation is made the application 
will be referred to the Licensing Sub Committee for determination. The same 
is for Temporary Event Notices.

3. Issues, Options and Analysis of Options

3.1 This report provides details at Appendix A of all applications received for any 
New/Variation/Minor Variation for a Premises Licence/Club Premises 
Certificate or a Temporary Event Notice; or any type of Gambling Premises 
Licence for the period of the 1 January 2016 to 31 May 2016.

4. Reasons for Recommendation

4.1 This report is for information only.

Page 85

Agenda Item 7



5. Consultation (including Overview and Scrutiny, if applicable)

4.1 There is no consultation required in relation to the contents of this report.

6. Impact on corporate policies, priorities, performance and community 
impact

6.1 None

7. Implications

7.1 Financial

Implications verified by: Laura Last
Senior Finance Officer

There are no financial implications in relation to this report.

7.2 Legal

Implications verified by: Chris Pickering
Principal Solicitor - Litigation & Employment

This report is for information only and there are no legal implications.

7.3 Diversity and Equality

Implications verified by:  Natalie Warren
Community Development and Equalities 
Manager

There are no Diversity or Equality implications in relation to this report.

7.4 Other implications (where significant) – i.e. Staff, Health, Sustainability, 
Crime and Disorder)

None

8. Background papers used in preparing the report (including their location 
on the Council’s website or identification whether any are exempt or protected 
by copyright):

 None

9. Appendices to the report

 Appendix A – Applications Received Report.

Page 86



Report Author:

Paul Adams
Principal Licensing Officer
Licensing Team, Public Protection

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Licences received between 01/01/2016 and 31/05/2015 

Date 

Received

Premises Name Case Ref. Premises Address Summary Of 

Application

Result if not 

granted 

under 

delegated 

authority

Premises Licence 42

07-Jan-16 Moto Thurrock 16/00031/LAMIN Thurrock Services Arterial Road West 

Thurrock Essex RM16 3BG 

Application for a minor 

variation to amend the 

plans attached to the 

licence

21-Jan-16 Co-operative Group 

Food Ltd

16/00113/LAMIN Co-op Market Town 15 High Street 

Stanford Le Hope Essex SS17 0HD

Minor variation to 

change the layout of 

the premises
17-Mar-16 Lounge Bar 16/00375/LAMIN Unit 4 Lakeside Business Village 

Fleming Road Chafford Hundred 

Grays Essex RM16 6YA 

Application to vary the 

layout of the premises

04-Jan-16 Whitmore Arms 16/00017/LAMIN Whitmore Arms Rectory Road Orsett 

Grays Essex RM16 3LB

Application for a minor 

variation to change the 

opening hour to 09:00.  

No changes to 

licensable activities

11-May-16 MRH Meads 16/00598/LAMIN Meads Service Station Arterial Road 

(A1306) Purfleet Essex RM19 1TS 

Application for a minor 

variation to change the 

premises layout

P
age 89



19-Apr-16 McColls 16/00506/LAMIN 2 St Johns Way Corringham Essex 

SS17 7LJ 

Application for a minor 

variation to change the 

premises layout

04-Feb-16 East Tilbury Post 

Office

16/00172/LAMIN East Tilbury Bata Estate Post Office 2 - 

3 Stanford House Princess Margaret 

Road East Tilbury Essex RM18 8YP 

Application for a minor 

variation to change the 

layout of the premises

12-May-16 Orsett Classic And 

Vintage Show

16/00599/LAPRE Orsett Showground Rectory Road 

Orsett Essex  

Application for a time 

limited premises 

licence to authorise live 

music, recorded music, 

performance of dance 

and supply of alcohol

28-Feb-16 Essex Military 

Support Association 

CIC

16/00272/LAPRE Orsett Showground Rectory Road 

Orsett Essex  

Application for a 

premises licence to 

allow live music and 

sale of alcohol by retail 

at Essex Military 

Festival and Armed 

Forces Day
20-Jan-16 TOMIE 16/00097/LAPRE Orsett Showground Rectory Road 

Orsett Essex  

New application for a 

Premises Licence to 

run 29th April - 2nd 

May 2016 to authorise 

regulated 

entertainment and sale 

of alcohol for a VW 

camper van meet

P
age 90



21-Apr-16 Orsett Hall 

Banqueting And 

Conference Centre

16/00526/LAPRE Orsett Hall Prince Charles Avenue 

Orsett Essex RM16 3HS 

Application to vary the 

plans to include a new 

bar area.  No changes 07-Jan-16 Stifford Clays Social 

Club

16/00027/LAPRE Stifford Clays Social Club Crammavill 

Street Stifford Clays Grays Essex 

RM16 2AP 

Application for a new 

Premises Licence to 

authorise regulated 18-Apr-16 Sound On Festival 16/00504/LAPRE Aveley Sports And Social Club 

Purfleet Road Aveley Essex RM15 

4DT 

Application for a new 

time limited premises 

licence to authorise the 

Refused at 

Committee 

22/06/201616-May-16 Village Indiya 16/00647/LAPRE Village Indiya 29 Lodge Lane Little 

Thurrock Grays Essex RM17 5RY 

Application to vary 

premises licence in 

order to have sale by 18-May-16 Kwik Save 16/00648/LAPRE 16 London Road Stanford Le Hope 

Essex SS17 0LD 

Application for a new 

premises licence to 

authorise the sale of 19-Apr-16 Karis May Darling 

Foundation

16/00505/LAPRE Gable Hall School Specialist 

Performing Arts And Vocational 

College Southend Road Corringham 

Essex SS17 8JT 

Application for a time 

limited premises 

licence for supply of 

alcohol and regulated 

entertainment
04-Apr-16 Jayish (London) Ltd 16/00432/LAPRE Kiosk UM 4 Intu Lakeside West 

Thurrock Way West Thurrock Essex 

RM20 2ZQ 

Application for a new 

premises licence to 

authorise the sale of 

alcohol for 

consumption off the 

premises only.
19-Feb-16 Red Lion Off Licence 16/00229/LAPRE Red Lion 229 London Road Grays 

Essex RM17 5YS

Application to vary the 

layout of the premises 

and extend the hours 

for off sales of alcohol 

to 05:00 - 00:00

P
age 91



07-Mar-16 The Courtyard Inn 16/00302/LAPRE Essex Inns Group Ltd The Courtyard 

Inn Queensgate Centre Orsett Road 

Grays Essex RM17 5DF 

Application to vary the 

premises licence to 

allow off sales of 

alcohol, to add live 

music Monday - 

Thursday, to extend 

the hours for all 

licensable activities by 

one hour and increase 

the opening and 

closing times.
Club Premises 

Certificate 

1

04-May-16 Aveley Bowling Club 16/00574/LAPREC Aveley Bowls Club Aveley Recreation 

Ground High Street Aveley Essex  

Application for a new 

Club Premises 

Certificate to authorise 

the supply of alcohol

Temporary Event 

Notice

2

08-Apr-16 Jonathon  Tummons 16/00466/LATEMP The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD 

Extension to hours on 

St Georges Day for 

sale of alcohol and live 

band
20-Apr-16 Orsett Church Of 

England Primary

16/00517/LATEMP Orsett Church Of England Primary 

School School Lane Orsett Essex 

RM16 3JR 

School Summer Fayre

08-Feb-16 Orsett Show Ground 16/00179/LATEMP Rectory Road Orsett  Essex  RM16 

3JU

Bar Provision at 

Modfest Event

P
age 92



04-Apr-16 North Stifford Village 

Hall

16/00428/LATEMP High Road North Stifford Grays Essex 

RM16 5UE 

60th Birthday Party

11-Jan-16 Hassenbrook 

Academy Trust

16/00047/LATEMP Hassenbrook Road Stanford Le Hope 

Essex SS17 0NS 

Amateur boxing show

06-Jan-16 Izgara 16/00048/LATEMP 7 - 9 George Street Grays Essex 

RM17 6LY

Sale of Alcohol

11-Jan-16 Les Richards 16/00046/LATEMP Wyldescrest House 857 London Road 

West Thurrock Essex RM20 3AT

Dance music event 

with live DJ 

entertainment

Application 

withdrawn 

following 

police and 

licensing 

discussions
20-Apr-16 Tudor Court Primary 

School

16/00518/LATEMP Bark Burr Road Chafford Hundred 

Grays Essex RM16 6PL

Bingo Night

17-Mar-16 The Sandmartin 16/00366/LATEMP The Sandmartin Drake Road Chafford 

Hundred Grays Essex RM16 6PP 

Customer Networking 

Event / Disco

24-May-16 The Oak 16/00668/LATEMP The Oak Lodge Lane Grays Essex 

RM17 5RZ 

Extension to hours 

04-Feb-16 Friends Of Woodside 16/00163/LATEMP Woodside Academy Grangewood 

Avenue Grays Essex RM16 2GJ 

Fundraising Quiz Night

25-Feb-16 High House Barns 16/00256/LATEMP Vellacott Close Purfleet Essex RM19 

1AJ

Sale by retail of 

alcohol, provision of 

regulated 

entertainment and 

provision of late night 

refreshment for a night 

of DJ Entertainment

P
age 93



27-May-16 Greene King 16/00681/LATEMP The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD 

Extension to hours 

27-May-16 Orsett Village Hall 16/00685/LATEMP Village Hall High Road Orsett Essex 

RM16 3LD 

Fund Raising Event

26-Apr-16 Royal British Legion 16/00538/LATEMP Community Hall Faymore Gardens 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5NN 

Fund Raising Event

08-Feb-16 Thurrock Garden 

Centre

16/00178/LATEMP Thurrock Garden Centre South Road 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 6DU 

Quiz night at Cafe

17-Feb-16 Yewande Kannike 16/00226/LATEMP Koala Park  Broadway Estate  Tilbury 

Essex RM18 7BP

Family fun day for 

members of the public

18-May-16 North Stifford Village Hall16/00644/LATEMP Village Hall High Road North Stifford 

Grays Essex  

Fund Raising Event

17-May-16 South Ockendon 

Centre

16/00634/LATEMP Belhus Library Derry Avenue South 

Ockendon Essex RM15 5DX 

Fund Raising Event

27-May-16 Deneholm Primary 

School

16/00684/LATEMP Deneholm Primary School Culford 

Road Grays Essex RM16 2SS 

Fund Raising Event

05-May-16 Thames RFC Ltd 

Clubhouse

16/00579/LATEMP 142 Garron Lane South Ockendon 

Essex RM15 5JU 

Extension to hours 

21-Jan-16 Thames RFC 

Clubhouse

16/00111/LATEMP Garron Lane South Ockendon Essex 

RM15 5JU 

Members 21st Birthday 

Party

16-Mar-16 The Woodlands 

Edge

16/00361/LATEMP The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD 

Live singer and supply 

of alcohol on Good 

Friday

11-Apr-16 Royal British Legion 

Club

16/00471/LATEMP Faymore Gardens South Ockendon 

Essex RM15 5NN 

40th Wedding 

Anniversary Party

13-May-16 Little Thurrock 

Primary School

16/00607/LATEMP Little Thurrock Primary School 

Rectory Road Grays Essex RM17 

5SW 

Fund Raising Event

P
age 94



14-Apr-16 Warren Primary 

School

16/00489/LATEMP Warren Primary School Gilbert Road 

Chafford Hundred Grays Essex RM16 

6NB 

Hog Roast Evening 

2016

24-Feb-16 Corringham Bowling 

Club

16/00248/LATEMP Corringham Recreation Ground 

Recreation Avenue Corringham Essex 

SS17 9BZ

Sale of alcohol at open 

competition for bowling 

clubs
24-Feb-16 High House 

Production Park

16/00249/LATEMP Vellacott Close Purfleet Thurrock 

Essex RM19 1AJ

Sale by retail of 

alcohol, provision of 

regulated 

entertainment and 

provision of late night 

refreshment for a 

wedding party
23-Mar-16 Bulphan Recreation 

Ground

16/00397/LATEMP Church Road Bulphan Essex RM14 

3RU

Sale of alcohol at 

Bulphan School PTA 

Family Fun Day30-Mar-16 Orsett Showground 16/00406/LATEMP Rectory Road Orsett Essex RM16 3JN A festival of beers and 

burgers

07-Apr-16 High House 

Production Park 

Barns

16/00459/LATEMP High House Production Park London 

Road Purfleet Essex RM19 1RJ 

Wedding Reception

18-Apr-16 St John's Church 16/00500/LATEMP 24 Victoria Avenue Grays Essex 

RM16 2RP 

Male Voice Choir 

Concert

13-May-16 High House 

Production Park 

Barns

16/00608/LATEMP High House Production Park London 

Road Purfleet Essex RM19 1RJ 

Music Event

27-May-16 Greene King 16/00682/LATEMP The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD 

Extension to hours 

P
age 95



01-Mar-16 Harris Primary 

Academy

16/00271/LATEMP Harris Mayflower Primary Academy 

Mayflower Road Chafford Hundred 

Grays Essex RM16 6SA 

Summer Fete

20-Feb-16 High House Barns 16/00242/LATEMP Vellacott Close Purfleet Essex RM19 

1AJ

Sale by retail of 

alcohol, provision of 

regulated 

entertainment and 

provision of late night 

refreshment for a 

wedding party
16-May-16 Greene King 16/00619/LATEMP The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive 

South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD 

Extension to hours 

19-Jan-16 Chadwell Village Hall 16/00089/LATEMP Chadwell Village Hall Waterson Road 

Chadwell St Mary Essex RM16 4NX 

Private function in 

village hall

11-Apr-16 Horndon Primary 

School

16/00472/LATEMP Horndon On The Hill C Of E Primary 

School Hillcrest Road Horndon On 

The Hill Essex SS17 8LR 

Annual one day May 

Fayre

10-Mar-16 Thames RFC 

Clubhouse

16/00328/LATEMP Garron Lane South Ockendon Essex 

RM15 5JU 

60th Birthday Party

14-Apr-16 Harris Primary 

School

16/00490/LATEMP Harris Mayflower Primary Academy 

Mayflower Road Chafford Hundred 

Grays Essex RM16 6SA 

Playground party 

(BBQ, Bar � Disco)  to 

celebrate Queens 90th 

Birthday
26-Apr-16 St Joseph's RC 

Primary School

16/00537/LATEMP St Josephs RC Primary School 

Scratton Road Stanford Le Hope 

Essex SS17 0PA 

Fund Raising Event

Late Temporary 

Event Notice

2

P
age 96



27-May-16 The Woodlands Edge 16/00679/LATENL The Woodlands Edge Broxburn Drive South Ockendon Essex RM15 5RD Extension to hours 

23-Mar-16 Cherrywood Scout 

Camp

16/00390/LATENL Arterial Road Purfleet Essex RM19 

1TS 

Scout Camp - Re-

enactment and living 

history event

P
age 97



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	5 Review of the Statement of Principles under the Gambling Act 2005
	Appendix A - Gambling Policy

	6 CSE Awareness Training for Hackney Carriage Private Hire Drivers
	7 Applications Received
	Appendix A - Applications Received Report


